
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Legislature Session Update by State Representative David Silvers 

B. Presentation regarding FDOT/TPA improvements for the Circle by Jorge Maspons, 
PE for PE Engineering and Humberto Arrieta, Project Manager for FDOT-District IV 

C. Proclamation declaring May 19, 2022 as Ocean Rescue Day 

D. Proclamation declaring May 16-22, 2022 as National Beach Safety Week 

E. Proclamation declaring May 2022 as Historic Resources Preservation Month  

F. Proclamation declaring May 15-21, 2022 as National Public Works Week 

G. Presentation by Maurice "Maui" Goodbeer, Founder of the non-profit StreetWaves, 
brought forward by Vice Mayor McVoy 

H. Oceanfront EKO Park: Fun, Education, and guiding humanity towards a safe future 
with EKOTECTURE Presentation by Jill Karlin 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - April 19, 2022 

B. Work Session - April 25, 2022 

C. Pre-agenda Work Session - April 27, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Resolution No. 32-2022 – Support for Additional Traffic Calming Measures on Federal 
Highway 



B. Proposed Settlement of Pending Personal Injury Litigation with Anita Murphy-Moore 

C. Proclamation declaring May as Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance 2022-06 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 
23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 2 
“Procedures,” adding a new Section 23.3-20 “Applicant’s Public Neighborhood 
Meeting and Outreach,” providing for an applicant held public neighborhood meeting 
and virtual outreach 

B. Ordinance No. 2022-10 – Second Reading – Notice Requirements for Rental 
Increases and Termination of Monthly Non-Residential Tenancies Without a Specific 
Duration  

C. Resolution No. 23-2022 -  changing the name of “Ocean Breeze” to “South Ocean 
Breeze” from Lake Ave to 5th Ave South  

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Construction Agreement with Ahrens Companies 

B. Resolution No. 33-2022 Tenth Operating Budget Amendment to appropriate $10,000 
of fund balance to replenish an operating account used to make an emergency 
purchase of golf cart batteries. 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

May 23 - Work Session @ 5 PM 
May 24 - Budget Work Session # 1 @ 5 PM 
May 25 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 AM 
May 31 - Utility Meeting @ 6 PM 
 
 

Draft Agenda - June 7, 2022 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 



for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:00 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (00:17) Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz.  Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (00:37) led by Commissioner Kimberly 

Stokes. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (00:56) led by Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING (01:14) 

 

Presentation F, a Proclamation declaring April 22-30, 2022 as International Dark-Sky Week 

and Consent B, a Proclamation declaring April 2022 as Water Conservation Month were added 

to the agenda. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (01:54) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Presentation by Richard Pinsky regarding the recent legislative session (2:22) 

 

B. Presentation of Certificates to Suits for Seniors Graduates (25:18) 

 

C. Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to the Charter Review Committee (33:20) 

 

D. PBSO quarterly presentation by Captain Todd Baer (36:15)  

 

E. Proclamation declaring April 22, 2022 as Earth Day (1:23:20) 

 

F. (added) Proclamation declaring April 22-30, 2022 as International Dark-Sky Week 

(1:25:09) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (1:29:20) 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, April 19, 2022 

 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (1:50:04) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 

 had been speaking with residents about various issues 

 met with Palm Beach County Vice Mayor Greg Weiss to discuss city issues such as the 

pool 

 Palm Beach League of Cities offered a training to the city commissioners 

 said that the budget process would be beginning 

 announced that city staff would be involved in a second annual cleanup for Earth Day 

 stated that there would be a presentation by FAU regarding redistricting at an upcoming 

meeting 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (01:54:00) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:54:20) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Pre-agenda work session - March 23, 2022 

B. Special Meeting - March 28, 2022 

C. Regular Meeting - April 5, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (1:54:35) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A. Proclamation declaring April 2022 as Sexually Transmitted Disease Awareness Month 

 

B. (added) Proclamation declaring April 2022 as Water Conservation Month 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (1:54:43) 

 

A. Ordinance No. 07-2022 – Second Reading -- Notice Requirements for Rental Increases and 

Termination of Monthly Tenancies Without a Specific Duration 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, April 19, 2022 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 07–2022 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 20, 

“CIVIL RIGHTS,” BY CREATING ARTICLE III, “LANDLORD TENANT NOTICE 

REQUIREMENTS,” SECTION 20-20 “NOTICE OF TERMINATION OF MONTHLY 

RESIDENTIAL TENANCY WITHOUT SPECIFIC DURATION” AND SECTION 20-

21 “WRITTEN NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO RENTAL 

PAYMENT INCREASES FOR ALL RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES,” TO REQUIRE 

60DAYS’ WRITTEN NOTICE FOR TERMINATION OF TENANCIES AND 

INCREASES IN RENTAL RATES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Ordinance No. 07-2022 amending Chapter 20 “Civil Rights” regarding the Notice 

Requirements for Rental Increases and Termination of Monthly Tenancies Without a Specific 

Duration. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (2:05:39) 

 

A. Resolution No. 01-2022 – Establishment of a City Travel Policy (2:06:39) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ADOPTING A PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 166.021(9), FLORIDA STATUTES; ADOPTING A PROCEDURAL GUIDE 

TO IMPLEMENT THE PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY; 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE PROCEDURAL GUIDE AS 

NEEDED; AND PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Resolution No. 01-2022 regarding the updates to the City’s travel policy and the legislatively 

required actions governing the classes of travel, amounts of meal allowance, and mileage 

reimbursement rate with changes. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

B. Resolution No. 24-2022 – Authorizing the Issuance of Series 2022 Consolidated Utility 

Bonds. (2:22:37) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-2022 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION NO. 45-2020 OF 

THE CITY; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $52,000,000 IN 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, April 19, 2022 

 

 

FLORIDA CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022, TO 

PROVIDE FUNDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE ACQUISITION, 

CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 

CITY'S CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM; MAKING CERTAIN OTHER 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF 

SUCH BONDS; PROVIDING CERTAIN TERMS AND DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS, 

INCLUDING AUTHORIZING A NEGOTIATED SALE OF SAID BONDS AND THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT WITH 

RESPECT THERETO UPON COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN PARAMETERS; 

APPOINTING THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR WITH RESPECT TO SAID 

BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN OFFICIAL 

STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE; AUTHORIZING 

THE PURCHASE OF BOND INSURANCE AND A RESERVE ACCOUNT 

INSURANCE POLICY AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 

INSURANCE AGREEMENT OR AGREEMENTS WITH RESPECT THERETO; 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CUSTODY 

AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 24-2022 authorizing the issuance of Series 2022 Consolidated Utility Bonds. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

C. Resolution No. 28-2022 – Fourth Capital Budget Amendment for FY 2022 to amend 

the appropriated Electric Utility CIP (2:35:08) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 28-2022, FOURTH CAPITAL APPROPRIATION 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL 

CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND 

SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND CORRESPONDING 

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S NECESSARY CAPITAL EXPENSES, THE 

USES AND EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF 

THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND 

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Resolution No. 28-2022 – Fourth Capital Budget Amendment for FY 2022 to amend the 

appropriated Electric Utility CIP. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

D. Resolution No. 25-2022 – Eighth Operating Budget Amendment for FY 2022 to 

appropriate $70,900 from Fund Balance to support the addition of a new Assistant 

Building Official (2:36:14) 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, April 19, 2022 

 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-2022, EIGHTH BUDGET AMENDMENT OF THE CITY OF 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF 

FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

AND CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S NECESSARY 

OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS 

FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 25-2022 authorizing a budget amendment to appropriate $70,900 from Fund 

Balance to support the addition of a new Assistant Building Official. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

E. Resolution No. 26-2022 – Third Capital Budget Amendment for FY 2022 to 

appropriate $150,000 from Fund Balance to support the Nitrification Action 

Plan/Water Age Study (2:36:58) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 26-2022, THIRD CAPITAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION 

OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL BUDGET 

AMENDMENTS AND CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S 

NECESSARY CAPITAL EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE 

VARIOUS FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Resolution 26-2022 authorizing a capital budget amendment to appropriate $150,000 from 

Fund Balance to support the Nitrification Action Plan/Water Age Study. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

F. Resolution No. 27-2022 – Electing the Standard Allowance under the State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Fund of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). (2:39:51) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2022, OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ELECTING THE STANDARD ALLOWANCE AVAILABLE UNDER THE REVENUE 

LOSS PROVISION OF THE STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, April 19, 2022 

 

 

ESTABLISHED BY THE AMERICAN RESUCE PLAN ACT OF 2021; REPEALING 

ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution 27-2022, electing the Standard Allowance under the State and Local Fiscal 

Recovery Fund of the American Rescue Plan Act. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: (02:40:20) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not provide a report: 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 

April 25 - work session @ 5 PM  

April 26 - utility meeting  

April 27 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 AM  

May 2 - budget work session #1 @ 5 PM 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to move the 

May 3 City Commission meeting to May 5 at 6 PM to allow the Commissioners to attend the 

Lake Worth High School graduation. (02:41:27) 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (2:47:41) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:48 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved May 3, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube.  



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION – VISIONING SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2022 - 5:00 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:09 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (1:05) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes, and Reinaldo Diaz.  Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, Assistant City Manager Juan Ruiz and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:15) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION (1:37) 

 

A. Discussion by City Commission regarding their vision for the future of Lake Worth Beach 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (01:30:21) 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:39 PM. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: May 19, 2022 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27, 2022 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:01 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (00:54) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes, and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia, and Deputy City Clerk Shayla Ellis.  

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION  

 

Action: Consensus to have the name change for the southern portion of Ocean Breeze Drive to be 

added to a future agenda and noticing those that will be affected by the name change. (1:26) 

 

Action: Consensus to create a volunteer liaison position for a staff member on behalf of the City for 

engagement in the affected community regarding LGBTQIA+ issues and upcoming 

legislation. (5:51) 

 

Action: Consensus to hire a consultant/negotiator agent to review the submittal of the plans from the 

developer and the economic incentives offered from the City and the CRA regarding the 

Gulfstream Hotel and provide the commission with a report outlining the cost and benefits of 

the project. (17:55) 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:12:58)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:14 AM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: May 19, 2022 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
WORK SESSION 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 17, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 32-2022 – Support for Additional Traffic Calming Measures on Federal Highway 

 
SUMMARY: 

There have been many conversations about Federal Highway at the Commission, staff, and 
resident level for the past few years.  Based on discussion regarding the upcoming FDOT projects 
at the 5/09/22 Commission Workshop, Resolution No. 32-2022 is being brought forward.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Last year at the September 21st Commission meeting, Public Works brought forth an agenda item 
for the joint funding of a Federal Highway traffic study with the Palm Beach County Transportation 
Planning Agency (TPA).  The background for this study involved two upcoming Florida Department 
of Transportation (FDOT) Resurfacing Restoration & Rehabilitation (RRR) projects:   

 10th Ave South to 6th Ave North in 2024 

 6th Ave North to Arlington Rd in 2025 

In previous City meetings, traffic concerns and possible calming measures have been discussed 
and Public Works as been adamant in requesting additional traffic calming measures on Federal 
Highway including:   

 Addressing the inconsistent speed limit between the City’s northern and southern borders  

 Creation of a vertical deflection by raising the existing signalized pedestrian crosswalk 
adjacent to Sacred Heart School between 4th Ave North and 5th Ave North (would be one 
of the first on a State road) 

 Creation of a vertical deflection by the addition of a raised pedestrian crosswalk east of 
South Grade Elementary in the vicinity of 7th Ave South to 8th Ave South OR 8th Ave South 
to 9th Ave South (per FDOT, creating a raised intersection at 7th Ave South is a possibility 
– also would be one of the first on a State road)   

 Use of Rectangular Rapid-Flashing Beacons (RRFB), which the City has recently received 
approval to utilize from the Federal Highway Administration (letter included in backup 
material)  

The four options mentioned above are currently in discussion on this state project.  Resolution No. 
32-2022 is an endorsement of the aforementioned traffic calming measures. 
 
Resolution No. 32-2022 also directs the Public Works Director or designee to coordinate with 
FDOT on all upcoming roadway projects within the City limits to ensure appropriate detours are in 
place to best accommodate traffic flows and reduce to the extent practical negative impact on 
neighborhoods. This direction will help to further the coordination process with FDOT and provide 
localized knowledge to all detour considerations. 



Resolution No. 32-2022  

DIRECTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution 32-2022 - Support for Additional Traffic Calming 
Measures on Federal Highway 

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 



32-2022 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 32-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, IN SUPPORT OF THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
INCLUDING ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC CALMING 
MEASURES ON FEDERAL HIGHWAY (PROJECT 
NUMBER 4461731); PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach City Commission has consistently 

supported projects and traffic calming methods that enhance pedestrian and bicyclist 
safety on highly traveled City roadways as well as within the neighborhoods; and 
 

WHEREAS, discussion at the May 9th public City Commission Workshop illustrated 
unanimous support for traffic calming on the Federal Highway corridor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff has worked collaboratively with the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) on all upcoming roadway projects within the City limits to ensure 
the best possible and most beneficial outcome for residents and visitors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to further facilitate the collaboration with FDOT, the Public Works 
Director or designee is directed to coordinate with FDOT on all upcoming roadway 
projects within the City limits to ensure appropriate detours are in place to best 
accommodate traffic flows and reasonably reduce (to the extent possible) negative impact 
on neighborhoods; and  
 

WHEREAS, FDOT has multiple upcoming projects within the City limits including 
project number 4461731 on Federal Highway from 10th Avenue South to 6th Avenue 
North; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires additional traffic calming measures on Federal 

Highway and expresses it support for additional traffic calming measures to be included 
in FDOT’s project number 4461731 including, but not be limited to: 

 

1. Addressing the inconsistent speed limit between the City’s northern and 
southern borders;  

 
2. Creation of a vertical deflection by raising the existing signalized pedestrian 

crosswalk adjacent to Sacred Heart School between 4th Ave North and 5th Ave 
North (would be one of the first on a State road); 

 
3. Creation of a vertical deflection by the addition of a raised pedestrian crosswalk 

east of South Grade Elementary in the vicinity of 7th Ave South to 8th Ave South 
OR 8th Ave South to 9th Ave South (or alternatively, creating a raised 
intersection at 7th Ave South); and, 

 
4. Use of Rectangular Rapid-Flashing Beacons (RRFB), which the City has 

recently received approval to utilize from the Federal Highway Administration 
(letter included in backup material). 

 
 



Pg. 2, Reso. 32-2022 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that supporting the 
aforementioned additional traffic calming measures on Federal Highway is in the best 
interests of the public health, safety, and welfare and that this Resolution serves a valid 
public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 

Section 1: The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Resolution as true 
and correct statements. 

 
Section 2: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach supports 

FDOT’s inclusion of additional traffic calming measures in FDOT project number 4461731 
on Federal Highway from 10th Avenue South to 6th Avenue North. 
 

Section 3: The Public Works Director or designee shall have the authority and 
responsibility to coordinate with FDOT on all upcoming roadway projects within the City 
limits and determine on the City’s behalf the appropriate detours to best accommodate 
traffic flows and reasonably reduce negative impact on neighborhoods. 

 
Section 4: Upon adoption of this Resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the 

Public Works Director as well as FDOT. The fully executed original shall be maintained 
by the City Clerk as public record of the City.  

 
Section 5:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 
The passage of this Resolution was moved by ________________, seconded by 

________________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 
Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 19th 

day of May, 2022. 
 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

By:  __________________________ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________  
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:  May 19, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Proposed Settlement of Pending Personal Injury Litigation with Anita Murphy-Moore 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed settlement will conclude the pending litigation with Anita Murphy-Moore regarding 
a personal injury claim for $125,000 in exchange for a general release of the City.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
The proposed settlement is to conclude the pending personal injury litigation filed against the 
City by the Plaintiff Anita Murphy-Moore. The case arose out of a trip and fall that occurred on 
June 27, 2019 on a sidewalk located at 29 South H. Street in the City. The Plaintiff, Anita Murphy-
Moore, was leaving the What-A-Buy store when she tripped over a severely cracked portion of 
sidewalk and fell. The sidewalk was repaired by the City shortly after the incident. As a result of 
her fall, Plaintiff claimed injury to her lower back, right hip, right toe, left ankle and right knee, 
with the lower back and right knee being the worst. Plaintiff ultimately underwent surgery related 
to her injuries and incurred medical bills totaling $232,367.07. Future care of the Plaintiff was 
outlined in the case to consist of physical therapy and potential adjacent level surgeries. The 
City Attorney and outside counsel attended mediation with the Plaintiff’s counsel, which ended 
at an impasse. The City’s outside counsel continued to discuss settlement with Plaintiff’s counsel 
and they have reached an agreement to settle the case for $125,000.00 pending City 
Commission approval. The settlement is inclusive of attorney’s fees and costs and will result in 
a general release of the City from the Plaintiff. 
  
 

MOTION: 

Motion to approve / disapprove Settlement of Pending Personal Injury Litigation with Anita 
Murphy-Moore for $125,000 and general release of City 

  

Attachments: 
Fiscal Analysis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY20 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

        

        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, Asian American and Pacific Islander (AAPI) Heritage in the United States 

was celebrated beginning in 1978 and was made into a month-long event in 

1992; and 

 

WHEREAS, during AAPI Heritage Month, we acknowledge Asian American and Pacific 

Islanders have lived and worked in the United States of America for more 

than 200 years, contributing to the economy, culture, education, politics, 

arts, literature, science and technological developments despite institutional 

and systemic injustices designed to prevent and limit these achievements 

and contributions; and  

 

WHEREAS,  during AAPI Heritage Month we acknowledge the additional 

determination, hard work, and perseverance, AAPI must put forth to be 

heard and seen and that these additional efforts are a result of inequitable 

institutional and systemic injustices; and WHEREAS, despite these 

contributions and leadership, the role of AAPI in U.S. history has been 

consistently overlooked and undervalued, in the literature, teaching and 

study of American history; and 

 

WHEREAS, racially motivated discrimination and harassment is at a high with a national 

spike in hate crimes against the AAPI community, especially targeting its 

Muslim, South Asian, and Southeast Asian members; and 

 

WHEREAS, AAPI community members have been disproportionately impacted by 

incidences of hate and discrimination during the COVID 19 pandemic.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, BETTY RESCH, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 

by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby proclaim: 

 

MAY 2022  

as 

ASIAN AMERICAN AND PACIFIC ISLANDER (AAPI) HERITAGE MONTH 

 

and encourage all residents to observe, recognize, and celebrate the culture, heritage and 

contributions of Asian American and Pacific Islanders to our country, state, and city. 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, to be affixed this 19th day of May, 2022. 

 
_________________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 19, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-06 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land 
Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” adding a new 
Section 23.3-20 “Applicant’s Public Neighborhood Meeting and Outreach,” providing for an 
applicant held public neighborhood meeting and virtual outreach 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed amendment would add a new section to the Land Development Regulations 
(LDR) requiring a public neighborhood meeting and virtual outreach for all Planned 
Developments, Developments of Significant Impact, and Lake Worth Beach Community 
Redevelopment Agency (“CRA”) sponsored new construction projects along the City’s major 
thoroughfares as well as those utilizing the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, 
Transfer Development Rights Program and/or Economic Investment Incentives. The subject 
ordinance would create a required neighborhood outreach process by applicants/developers 
prior to a presentation before the PZB or HRPB.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based 
on City Commission direction to staff to prepare an amendment to the LDRs to provide both 
formality and consistency to neighborhood outreach by applicants/developers with a proposed 
development application.  Specifically, applicants/developers will be required to hold a public 
neighborhood meeting and provide virtual outreach to ensure City residents and business 
owners have knowledge of the proposed application and opportunity to comment on proposed 
development prior to the City’s public consideration of these applications.  

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at the April 6, 2022 meeting*.  The Historic Resources 
Preservation Board (HRPB) also unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at the April 13, 2022 meeting*.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2022-06 on first reading and schedule the second 
reading/adoption on June 21, 2022. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Ordinance 2022-06 
PZHP Staff Report  

*Note: draft meeting minutes were not available upon publication of this staff report. 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  March 30, 2022  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  April 6 & April 13, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: PZHP 22-03100001 (Ordinance 2022-06): Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 

“Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” adding a 
new Section 23.3-20 “Applicant’s Public Neighborhood Meeting and Outreach,” providing for an 
applicant held public neighborhood meeting and virtual outreach. 

 

 
PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based on City Commission 
direction to staff to prepare an amendment to the LDRs to provide both formality and consistency to neighborhood 
outreach by applicants/developers with a proposed development application.  Specifically, applicants/developers 
will be required to hold a public neighborhood meeting and provide virtual outreach to ensure City residents and 
business owners have knowledge of the proposed application and opportunity to comment on proposed 
development prior to the City’s public consideration of these applications.  The amendment would add a new 
section to the City’s LDRs requiring said public neighborhood meeting and virtual outreach for all Planned 
Developments, Developments of Significant Impact, and Lake Worth Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 
(“CRA”) sponsored new construction projects along the City’s major thoroughfares as well as those utilizing the 
City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, Transfer Development Rights Program and/or Economic Investment 
Incentives.   
 
The proposed amendments would add a new section to the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of Ordinances: 

 Article 2, Section 23.2-20 - Applicant’s Public Neighborhood Meeting and Virtual Outreach 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt PZHP 22-03100001 (Ordinance 2022-06). 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in PZHP 22-03100001 (Ordinance 2022-06). 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2022-06 



2022-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 3 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 4 
“LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 2 5 
“ADMINISTRATION,” DIVISION 2 “PROCEDURES,” ADDING A 6 
NEW SECTION 23.2-20 “PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING,” 7 
PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING TO BE 8 

HELD BY THE APPLICANT FOR DEVELOPMENT; AND 9 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION 10 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 11 

 12 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 13 
municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 14 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 15 

 16 

 WHEREAS, the City has an interest in ensuring its residents and business owners 17 
have knowledge and opportunity to comment on proposed developments within the City; 18 
and 19 

 20 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to formalize a requirement that applicants for 21 

development hold a public neighborhood meeting to provide this opportunity to City 22 
residents and business owners who may be impacted by the proposed development; and 23 
 24 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 25 
ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 26 

City, its residents and visitors. 27 
 28 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 29 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA: 30 

 Section 1.  The whereas clauses are incorporated herein as true and correct and 31 

as the legislative findings of the City Commission. 32 

 33 
 Section 2.  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 2 34 
“Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new 35 

Section 23.2-20 “Public Neighborhood Meeting” to read as follows: 36 
 37 

Sec. 23.2-20.  Public Neighborhood Meeting. 38 
 39 
(a) A public neighborhood meeting shall be required for all Planned Developments, 40 

Developments of Significant Impact, and Lake Worth Beach Community 41 
Redevelopment Agency sponsored new construction projects along the City’s major 42 

thoroughfares as well as those utilizing the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive 43 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-06 

 

Program, Transfer Development Rights Program and/or Economic Investment 44 
Incentives.  45 
 46 

(b)  Concurrent with submittal of an application for a development, project or incentive 47 
identified in paragraph (1), but before presentation to the City’s Planning and Zoning 48 
Board or the Historic Resources Preservation Board, the applicant shall hold a public 49 
neighborhood meeting, in accordance with the requirements of this section, to 50 
discuss the application for development. 51 

 52 

(c) Notice of the public neighborhood meeting shall be provided by the applicant and 53 

sent by regular first-class mail to all persons who, according to the most recent tax 54 
rolls, own property within 400 feet of the property proposed for development as well 55 

as to any neighborhood association whose boundaries include the proposed project. 56 
The notice shall also be posted prominently at the property to be developed as well 57 
as the City’s website,the Lake Worth Beach CRA’s website, if applicable, and other 58 
appropriate social media outlets and websites. The notice and an affidavit of notice 59 

affirming the notice requirements have been met shall be hand-delivered to the 60 
department for community sustainability. The notice shall be mailed, posted at the 61 
property, and hand-delivered to the City Clerk and CRA office (as applicable) for 62 

website posting at least 15 days before the public neighborhood meeting. The 63 
expense of the mailed notices and posted notice at the property and public 64 

neighborhood meeting shall be borne by the applicant. 65 

 66 

(d) The notice shall provide the time, date, and location of the public neighborhood 67 

meeting as well as the applicant’s (or applicant’s representative) contact information 68 

including at a minimum an email address and phone number . The notice must also 69 
include the following statement:  “No person may rely upon any comment made by 70 

any person during the public neighborhood meeting as a representation or 71 
implication that the  application will be approved or disapproved in any form by the 72 
City.” 73 

 74 

(e) The public neighborhood meeting shall be held at a location that is accessible to the 75 
public and which will reasonably accommodate the number of persons notified of 76 

the meeting. The meeting may be in person, virtual or a combination of both. 77 

 78 

(f) The purpose of the public neighborhood meeting is informational only. While 79 

department of community sustainability staff and other city officials, advisory board 80 
members, and employees may attend and observe, they shall not participate and 81 

the meeting shall not be considered an official city meeting.   82 

 83 

(g) The procedures of the public neighborhood meeting must include the following: 84 

 85 

(1) The applicant shall discuss and answer questions regarding the following: 86 
 87 

a. The nature of the proposed development, including land use types and 88 

densities, as well as residential unit types; the placement of proposed 89 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-06 

buildings and other improvements on the site; the location, type and method 90 
of maintenance of open space and public use areas; the preservation of 91 
natural features; the proposed parking areas; the internal traffic circulation 92 

system, including trails; the approximate total ground coverage of paved 93 
areas and structures; and types of water and sewage treatment systems.  94 

 95 
b. Conformity of the proposed development with the comprehensive plan, the 96 

strategic plan, this chapter and other applicable regulations.  97 

 98 

c. Any variances, sustainable bonuses, development rights transfers, planned 99 

development relaxation, exceptions or waivers or other incentives being 100 
requested under the LDRs for the development as of the time of the meeting.  101 

 102 
d. Any direct and indirect public benefits associated with the project that 103 

support the requested sustainable bonuses, development rights transfers or 104 
other incentives being utilized under the LDRs for the development known 105 

at the time of the meeting.  106 

 107 

e. Any new city revenue projections associated with the project including but 108 
not limited to ad valorem taxes and utility revenues. 109 

 110 

f. Any provision of affordable or workforce housing including proposed unit 111 
types, estimated rental or sale parameters and projected commitment term. 112 

 113 

g. Estimate of development schedule. 114 

 115 

(2) The applicant shall also allow attendees to comment on the proposed 116 

development. 117 
 118 

(h) Minutes 119 
 120 

(1) The applicant shall provide a summary and/or minutes of the public 121 

neighborhood meeting which shall include the following:  122 
 123 

a. Date and location of the meeting; 124 
b. Time meeting started and time meeting ended; 125 

c. List of attendees including appropriate contact information; 126 
d. Topics discussed; 127 
e. Proposed responses to topics discussed; 128 
f. Social media postings; and 129 
g. Project Website. 130 

 131 

(2) Minutes from the public neighborhood meeting, taken by the applicant, shall be 132 
promptly provided to the department for community sustainability. The city shall 133 
not conduct any public hearings on the development until the meeting minutes 134 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-06 

 

are received by the department. Copies of the minutes provided by the applicant 135 
shall be included in the back-up materials for the city’s public hearing(s). 136 

 137 

 138 

 Section 3.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 139 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 140 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 141 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 142 

portions thereof. 143 

 Section 4.  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 144 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 145 

 Section 5.  Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 146 

the City’s Code of Ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish such, 147 

and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or any other appropriate 148 

word. 149 

 Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days 150 

after its final passage. 151 

  The passage of this ordinance was moved by _________________, seconded by 152 

Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:  153 

 154 
  Mayor Betty Resch 155 

  Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy          156 
  Commissioner Sarah Malega 157 
  Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 158 

 Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 159 
 160 

 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 161 
19th of May 2022.  162 
 163 
 The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner 164 

_________, seconded by Commissioner ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the 165 
vote was as follows: 166 
 167 

  Mayor Betty Resch           168 
  Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy         169 
  Commissioner Sarah Malega 170 
  Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 171 

 Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 172 
 173 
 174 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-06 

 175 
 176 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 177 

_____________________, 2022. 178 
 179 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 180 
 181 
 182 

By: __________________________ 183 
Betty Resch, Mayor 184 

 185 
ATTEST: 186 

 187 
 188 
________________________ 189 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 190 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE:  May 19, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-10 – Second Reading – Notice Requirements for Rental Increases and 
Termination of Monthly Non-Residential Tenancies Without a Specific Duration  

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed Ordinance will add two (2) provisions to the City’s code to require a 180-day 
written notice of an increase in rental rates that exceeds five percent (5%) and the termination 
of monthly non-residential tenancies without a specific duration.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
Over the past year, the City Commission has witnessed and heard of substantial and steady 
increases in non-residential rental rates within the City.  When there is no lease, section 83.03, 
Florida Statutes, provides that the non-residential landlord must provide at least a seven-day 
notice to a tenant renting week-to-week, a 15-day notice to a tenant renting month-to-month, a 
45-day notice to a tenant renting quarter-to-quarter, and a 3 month notice to a tenant renting 
year-to-year.  This means that non-residential tenants renting on a month-to-month basis 
without a lease could be evicted after receiving only 15 days written notice of a rental rate 
increase and/or termination of their tenancy.  The Commission has been searching for ways to 
assist rental tenants, and Ordinance No. 2022-10 seeks to assist non-residential rental tenants 
in the City in two ways: 
 
First, due to the above-average increases in rental rates, Ordinance No. 2022-10 will require 
non-residential landlords in the City to give 180 days prior written notice to all non-residential 
tenants with a set lease term, or a monthly tenancy without a specific duration, of a proposed 
rental rate increase that exceeds five percent (5%). This ensures that tenants with a set lease 
term and monthly tenants without a set lease term or duration are given fair notice (180 days) 
of any potential rent increase before the rental increase commences. Currently, there is no law 
that requires such notice. 
 
Secondly, due to concerns with availability of rentals and above-average increases in rental 
rates, Ordinance No. 2022-10 will require non-residential landlords in the City to give 180 days 
prior written notice of termination to all non-residential tenants without a specific duration in 
which the rent is payable on a monthly basis. The notice will need to be provided prior to the 
end of any monthly period. Currently, section 83.03(3), Florida Statutes, only requires 15 days 
prior notice before a month-to-month tenancy without a set duration may be terminated. 
 
The ordinance was approved unanimously at the May 3, 2022 regular meeting.  
 



 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-10 – Notice Requirements for Rental 
Increases and Termination of Monthly Non-Residential Tenancies Without a Specific Duration.  

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Ordinance No. 2022-10 



10-2022 
 

 
ORDINANCE 10 – 2022 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 20, “CIVIL RIGHTS,” 
ARTICLE IV, “LANDLORD TENANT NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS,” BY ADOPTING SECTION 20-22 “NOTICE 
OF TERMINATION OF MONTHLY NON-RESIDENTIAL 
TENANCY WITHOUT SPECIFIC DURATION” AND SECTION 
20-23 “WRITTEN NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
RELATED TO RENTAL PAYMENT INCREASES FOR ALL 
NON-RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES,” TO REQUIRE 60-DAYS’ 
WRITTEN NOTICE FOR TERMINATION OF TENANCIES AND 
INCREASES IN RENTAL RATES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (“City”) is a duly constituted 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, like other cities in South Florida, over the past year, the City has 

witnessed a significant and steady increase in non-residential (i.e., commercial) rental 
rates being paid by commercial tenants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Commissioners have personally heard from members 

of the public regarding above-average increases in commercial rental rates within the City 
and Palm Beach County; and 

 
WHEREAS, according to commercial real estate market year-end data for Palm 

Beach County for 2021 and the first quarter of 2022, vacancy rates continue to drop and 
the price per square foot continues to rise; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has very limited options to assist commercial renters with 

unreasonable increases in rent; and  
 
WHEREAS, Part I of Chapter 83, Florida Statutes, applies to the rental of non-

residential tenancies and sets forth the rights and duties of landlords and tenants; and 
 
WHEREAS, Part I of Chapter 83, Florida Statutes, does not provide specific 

notification requirements for landlords seeking to increase rental rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, although some lease agreements contain provisions regarding 

increase in rental rates, a landlord generally may not raise rent during the term of a lease; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, normally, unless rate increases are addressed in the lease, a landlord 

will have to wait until the end of the term of the lease or tenancy to raise the rental rate 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-10 

and, while not required, generally the notice of such increase is provided in accordance 
with the termination notice set forth in the lease or set forth by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, with respect to notices of termination of tenancy, when there is no 

lease, section 83.03, Florida Statutes, provides that the landlord must provide at least a 
seven-day notice to a tenant renting week-to-week, a 15-day notice to a tenant renting 
month-to-month, a 45-day notice to a tenant renting quarter-to-quarter, and a 3 month 
notice to a tenant renting year-to-year; and 

 
WHEREAS, this means tenants renting on a month-to-month basis without a lease 

could be evicted after receiving only 15 days written notice of a rental rate increase and/or 
termination of their non-residential tenancy; and 

  
WHEREAS, according to the Florida Attorney General opinion No. 94-41 (May 5, 

1994) and the case law cited therein, the Florida Legislature has not preempted local 
governments from enacting ordinances that enlarge the notification period for month-to-
month residential tenancies without a specific duration pursuant to section 83.57, Florida 
Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Florida Attorney General concluded that such enlargement of the 

notification period by ordinance would be supplemental to section 83.57, Florida Statutes, 
and compliance with such ordinance is possible without violating section 83.57, Florida 
Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the same arguments set forth in this Florida Attorney General opinion 

are, arguably, applicable to month-to-month non-residential tenancies without a specific 
duration as set forth in section 83.03, Florida Statutes; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to assist commercial and other non-residential 

tenants faced with unreasonable rental rate increases, including those tenants who may 
only receive 15 days written notice prior to eviction for the same; and 

 
WHEREAS, with the current lack of vacant non-residential rentals and increases 

in rents, 15 days written notice is insufficient time for such a tenant to find a new affordable 
location to move a business to or means to pay an increase in rent in excess of five 
percent (5%); and 

 
WHEREAS, requiring landlords to provide 180-days written notice before the rent 

can be increased more than five percent (5%) and before a tenant can be forced to leave 
in a month-to-month tenancy without a lease is a reasonable time period given the current 
market conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in response to the Florida Attorney General’s opinion 94-41, 

desires to enact this Ordinance requiring 180 days written notification to be given by all 
City of Lake Worth Beach non-residential landlords to their tenants with a lease or a 
monthly tenancy without a specific duration prior to increasing the tenants’ rental rates 
above five percent (5%) and prior to terminating a tenancy if the tenancy is monthly 
without a specific duration; and 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2022-10 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the recommended amendments 
to Chapter 20 and has determined that they serve a valid public purpose and are in the 
best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare of the City and its residents. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that: 
 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified as true and 
correct and as the specific findings of the City of Lake Worth Beach City Commission. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment. Chapter 20, entitled “Civil Rights,” is hereby amended at Article 
IV, “Landlord Tenant Notice Requirements,” to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 20-22. – Required fair written notice of termination of monthly non-residential 
tenancy without specific duration. 
 
A non-residential tenancy without a specific duration (as defined in subsection 83.03(2), 
Florida Statutes) in which the rent is payable on a month to month basis may be 
terminated by either the landlord or tenant by giving not less than 180 days written notice 
prior to the end of any monthly period. 
 
Sec. 20-23. – Required fair written notice of rental payment increases for non-
residential tenancies. 
 
A non-residential landlord that proposes to increase the current rental rate by more than 
five percent (5%) at the end of a lease for a specific duration, or during a tenancy without 
a specific duration (as defined in subsection 83.03(2), Florida Statutes) in which the rent 
is payable on a month to month basis, must provide 180 days written notice to the tenant 
before the tenant must either: 
 

(1) Accept the proposed amendment;  
(2) Reach an acceptable compromise; or, 
(3) Reject the proposed amendment to their tenancy. 

 
If the required 180 days written notice has been provided and the tenant has not agreed 
to the proposed amendment or an acceptable compromise, the landlord may impose the 
proposed amended term(s) or require the tenant(s) to vacate the premises. 
 

Section 3.  Except for the notice provisions set forth above in sections 20-22 and 20-23, 
all other provisions set forth in Chapter 83, Part I, Florida Statutes, as may be amended 
from time to time, shall govern non-residential tenancies.  
 
Section 4.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions thereof. 
 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-10 

Section 5.  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 6.  Codification.  The sections of this Ordinance may be made a part of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish such, and the 
word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or any other appropriate word. 
 
Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after its adoption. 

 

The passage of this Ordinance was moved by Vice Mayor McVoy, seconded by 

Commissioner Malega, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:  

 

Mayor Betty Resch    AYE 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  AYE 

Commissioner Kim Stokes   AYE 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  AYE 

 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 

3rd of May, 2022. 

 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner 

_________, seconded by Commissioner ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

 

Mayor Betty Resch  

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 

Commissioner Kim Stokes 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the 19th day of May, 

2022. 

 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 

 

 

By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 19, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 23-2022 -  changing the name of “Ocean Breeze” to “South Ocean Breeze” from 
Lake Ave to 5th Ave South  

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 23-2022 will officially change the name of “Ocean Breeze” to “South Ocean Breeze” 
from Lake Ave to 5th Ave South  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In May of 2019, a resolution was passed effectively changing the name of North O Street to 
North Ocean Breeze between Lake Ave and Wellesley Drive.  The request was made by the 
residents of North O Street and subsequently passed by City Commission Resolution 17-2019.  
Currently, the street “Ocean Breeze” between Lake Ave and 5th Ave South is causing confusion 
for package carriers, delivery drivers and public safety vehicles.  The “North” prefix is not being 
considered by drivers and therefore causing issues amongst the residents of Ocean Breeze.  
This Resolution is to officially adopt the name change of “Ocean Breeze” to “South Ocean 
Breeze”.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution 23-2022 changing the name of “Ocean Breeze” to 
“South Ocean Breeze” from Lake Ave to 5th Ave South. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 23-2022 



23-2022 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, FLORIDA, TO OFFICIALLY CHANGE THE NAME OF 
“OCEANBREEZE”, A PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO “SOUTH 
OCEANBREEZE” BETWEEN LAKE AVENUE AND 5TH AVENUE 
SOUTH, AS MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RECORDING AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, under Section 19-12 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of 
Ordinances, the names of City streets may be changed from time to time as deemed 
necessary by the City Commission through an adopted Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 16, 2019, the City of Lake Worth Beach adopted Resolution 
No. 14-2019, adopting the City of Lake Worth Beach Addressing and Street Naming 
Policy in order to address the issues that arise with changing street names and 
addresses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 7, 2019, the City of Lake Worth Beach adopted Resolution 
No. 17-2019, changing the name of “North O Street” to “North OceanBreeze” between 
Lake Avenue and Wellesley Drive; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the names “North OceanBreeze” and “OceanBreeze” are causing 
confusion for first responders and postal carriers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is consistent with the adopted Addressing and Street Naming Policy 
to change the name of “OceanBreeze” to “South OceanBreeze” to clarify the confusion; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the adopted Addressing and Street Naming Policy, 

the City has notified all impacted property owners and residents of the proposed action 
of the City Commission to change the name of their street. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and 
correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2.  The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby 
declares the name of the street currently known as “OceanBreeze” to “South 
OceanBreeze” from Lake Avenue to 5th Avenue South, as shown on Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 3.  The City Clerk is directed to record a copy of this Resolution, upon its passage, 
along with Exhibit “A”, in the Official Record in and for Palm Beach County, Florida.   
 



Resolution No.   23-2022 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
The passage of this Resolution was moved by Commissioner _______, seconded by 
Commissioner ________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 
 
 Mayor Betty Resch     
 Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy   

Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 

           Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this Resolution duly passed and adopted on the 19th day 
of May, 2022.  
 
      LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION  
 
      By:  ___________________________ 
               Betty Resch, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
 Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No.   23-2022 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Map showing the location of OceanBreeze subject to the proposed name change to 
South OceanBreeze. 

 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: May 17th 2022 DEPARTMENT: PublicWorks/LeisureServices 

TITLE: 

Construction Agreement with Ahrens Companies 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement with Ahrens Companies authorizes the contractor to construct structural pavilion 
improvements at Harold Grimes Memorial Field at a cost not to exceed $ 256,777.00. 

 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City identified major structural improvements that were necessary to bring the pavilion at 
Harold Grimes Memorial Field to an improved, safe and functional structural standard.  The City 
applied for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding last year (2021) for the Fiscal 
Year 2022 grant cycle.  The City was successful in receiving the grant allocation from the Palm 
Beach County Department of Housing and Urban Development.   

Harold Grimes Memorial Field is located in District 1.  It currently serves as a complex for the 
multi-use athletic field and public pavilion.  The proposed Grant Project will rehabilitate the 
existing pavilion and meet current building codes.  The project duration is one hundred fifty (150) 
calendar days for completion.     

The City advertised and accepted bids via the public procurement process and on April 20, 2022 
received a total of one (1) bid from a qualified and experienced contractor.  Staff from Public 
Works and Financial Services reviewed the bid and determined that Ahrens Companies met the 
requirements of a  responsive and responsible bidder.  The Agreement with Ahrens Companies 
is at a cost not to exceed $256,777.00 and is being fully funded by CDBG grant funds.      

 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with Ahrens Companies for the Harold Grimes 
Memorial Field Pavilion Improvements Project.  

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Construction Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 256,777 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 256,777 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

301-
8060-
572-63-
63 

Public 
Works 

Administration Improve 
other than 
build 

GV2201 
 
 

266,500 255,600 NA 255,600 0 

TBD        1,177  

 



Bidder: AHRENS ENTERPRISES, INC DBA AHRENS 
COMPANY 

ITEM # Units Qty Unit Cost Total

1 1 LS  $                 12,772.00 $12,772.00

2 1 LS  $                      920.00 $920.00

3 1 LS  $                   3,763.00 $3,763.00

4 1 LS  $                 13,892.00 $13,892.00

5 10 EA  $                      541.00 $5,410.00

6 1 LS  $                 17,640.00 $17,640.00

7 1 LS  $                 13,803.00 $13,803.00

8 1 LS  $               132,292.00 $132,292.00

9 3750 SF  $                          1.88 $7,050.00

10 500 SY  $                          8.47 $4,235.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$256,777.00

submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted
submitted

COMPLIANT Bid Compliance 

Anti-kickback Affidavit
Certification of Eligibility of General Contractor

Certification of Non-segregated Facilities
Workforce Projection

Bid Form 00300-1 - 00300-4
Unit Price Schedule Bid Form 00300-5 

Trench Safety Affidavit Bid Form 00300-6
Schedule of Major Subcontractors 00300-7

Schedule of Major Equipment & Materials 00300-8
Sworn Statement Under Section 287.133(3)(a), FS, On Public Entity Crimes 00300-09 - 00300-10

Drug Free Certification  00300-11
Bid Bond

Bidders Qualification Questionaire 00310-1 -00310-5 
Campaign Contribution Statement  00850 

Scrutinized Companies Certification Form 00851
Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

BAHIA SODDING

PERMIT FEE ALLOWANCE

CONTINGENCY

COLUMN BASE REPAIRS PER DETAIL

CLEAN AND BLAST ALL EXISTING STRUCTURAL FRAMING AND APPLY 
COATING PER SPECS
SIGNED/SEALED ENGINEERING ROOF AND PURLIN DESIGN DRAWINGS PER 
METAL BUILDING MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS

FURNISH AND INSTALL NEW ROOF SYSTEM PER SPECS

COAT EXISTING SLAB WITH EPOXY SLIP RESISTANT COATING

EROSION CONTROL

PROTECTION OF SITE / SAFETY FENCING

DEMOLITION 

DEMOLITION AND HAULOFF EXISTING PAVILION ROOF, PURLINS, AND RUSTED 
COMPONENTS 

IMPROVEMENTS

City of Lake Worth Beach
IFB 22-105 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project 

Bid Tab

DESCRIPTION

SITE MOBILIZATION / GENERAL REQUIRMENTS

* Bidder submittal was adjusted based on unit price submittal. Bidder included 
additional item 10A on his bid, this additional item was excluded from bid tab as it was 
not required in solicitation documents. 

Total*:





























 
 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

01/12/21-LWU         00020-1 
 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  
IFB #22-105 

 
               

00020 
INVITATION TO BID 

 

The City of Lake Worth Beach is soliciting bids from responsible and experienced contractors for 
the improvement of the Harold Grimes Memorial Park Pavilion located at 520 Sunrise Court, Lake 
Worth Beach FL 33460.  
This Invitation for Bid (IFB) may be downloaded at lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net 
or www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be 
registered as a Plan Taker for this Bid opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the 
Bid Call Document, to receive Addenda email notifications and download all documents without 
the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder 
has obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding 
System Vendor account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity.  Copies of this 
IFB may also be acquired by contacting purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  
 
Time is of the essence and any bid received after 3:00 PM, April 20, 2022 whether by mail or 
otherwise shall be rejected by the City. The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock 
located in the Financial Services Office. Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope, marked with 
the bid number, title, date, and hour bids are scheduled to be received. Bidders are responsible 
for ensuring that their bid is stamped by office personnel by the deadline indicated. 
 
All persons or entities responding to the IFB (hereafter “Bidders”) are responsible for ensuring 
that their bid is received by the City at its’ designated office address by the deadline indicated in 
the IFB. The City will in no way be responsible for delays caused by any occurrence. Bids shall 
not be submitted and will not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any other 
City’s address except as notified below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock 
in Financial Services Department.  
 
A Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled for March 29, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. at Harold 
Grimes Memorial Park Pavilion located at 520 Sunrise Court, Lake Worth Beach FL 33460.  
 
A Site Visit / Inspection will be held shortly after the conclusion of the Pre-Bid Meeting. 
The City will not answer any question at the visit. Bidders can submit their questions following 
the solicitation protocol after their visit. 
 

All bids must be mailed or delivered to:  
 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall  
Financial Services – Procurement Division 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 
 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

01/12/21-LWU         00020-2 
 

SUBJECT LINE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS IFB # 22-105 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold 
Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project. 
 
Any subsequent contract executed as a result of this IFB may be funded, in whole or in part, by 
the Federal funds.  Bidders therefore agree that any work performed pursuant to this IFB and 
resulting contract will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal 
policies, procedures, and directives. 
This project is funded by a HUD Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) via the PBC 
Department of Housing & Economic Development.  Davis-Bacon & Related Acts, including wage 
rates, will apply to all construction work performed on this project.  PBC requires the use of an 
online Labor Compliance Reporting System for all contractors and sub-contractors.  This is a 
Section project and all Section 3 requirements will apply.  Section 3 businesses are encouraged 
to bid. 
 
All questions must be in writing submitted on lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov before April 5, 2022 at 4 p.m.  
 
 Bids must be accompanied by a copy of Bid Security in the form of a certified or bank check 
made payable to the Owner, or a Bid Bond.  The amount of the security shall not be less than five 
(5) percent of the Bidder's total price indicated in Bid Form. Bidder must be able to deliver original 
Bid Bond immediately after the bid opening if requested by the City.  
 
 No Bid may be withdrawn for a period of 120 days after the scheduled closing date for the 
receipt of bids except as otherwise provided in Article 13 of the Instructions to Bidders. 
 
 The successful Bidder, who is awarded the Contract, shall be required to furnish a 100% 
Construction Performance Bond and a 100% Construction Payment Bond which meet the 
requirements of section 255.05, Florida Statutes. 
 
 The OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive all nonmaterial irregularities, 
to re-advertise, and to cancel any invitation to bid when it is in the best interests of the City. 
 
 
 
PUBLISHED: March 20, 2022 – Palm Beach Post & City Website 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  

IFB #22-105 
 

00100 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
 
1. DEFINED TERMS. 
 
Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract (EDCJC C-700, 2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General 
Conditions.  The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to Owner, as distinct from a sub-
bidder, who submits a bid to a Bidder.  The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, 
responsible and responsive Bidder to whom Owner (on the basis of Owner's evaluation as hereinafter 
provided) makes an award.  The term "Bidding Documents" includes the Advertisement or Invitation to 
Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda 
issued prior to receipt of Bids). 
 
2. COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS. 
 
2.1.  Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the cost, if any, stated in the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 
 
All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered as a Plan Taker for this Bid 
opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the Bid Call Document, to receive Addenda email 
notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder has 
obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding System Vendor 
account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity. 
 
2.2.  Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer 
assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of 
Bidding Documents. 
 
2.3.  Owner and Engineer in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms do so only 
for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use. 
 
3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS. 
 
To demonstrate qualifications to perform the Work, each Bidder must be prepared to submit within five 
days of Owner's request, written evidence such as financial data, previous experience, present commitments 
and other such data as may be reasonably specifically requested by Owner or otherwise required in Contract 
Documents.  Each Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the 
Project is located.  
 
4. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE. 
 
4.1. It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid, to (a) examine the Contract Documents 
thoroughly, (b) visit the site to become familiar with local conditions that may affect cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the Work, (c) consider federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may 
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work, (d) study and carefully correlate Bidder's 
observations with the Contract Documents, and (e) notify Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 
in the Contract Documents. 
 
4.2. Reference is made to Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications for the identification of: 
 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-2 

4.2.1. those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 
 
4.2.2. those drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface and subsurface 
conditions (except Underground Facilities) which are at or contiguous to the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2.3. Copies of such reports and drawings (referred to above), if not attached to the Specifications 
or added on the Drawings, will be made available by Owner to any Bidder on request.  Those reports 
and drawings are not a part of the Contract Documents.  Bidder may not rely upon the accuracy of the 
non-technical data, interpretations or opinions contained in those reports and drawings.  Bidder may 
not rely on the completeness of those reports and drawings for the purposes of bidding or construction.  
Bidder may rely on any technical data contained in those reports and drawings specifically referenced 
in Division 1: General Requirements as technical data that can be relied on. 

 
4.3. Information and data reflected in the Contract Documents with respect to Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site is based upon information and data furnished to Owner and Engineer by owners of 
such Underground Facilities or others, and Owner does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or 
completeness thereof unless it is expressly provided otherwise in the Supplementary Conditions. 
 
4.4. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders on 
subsurface conditions, Underground Facilities and other physical conditions, and possible changes in 
Contract Documents due to differing conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.05 of the General 
Conditions. 
 
4.5. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at Bidder's own expense, be responsible to make or obtain 
such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies and obtain any additional information and 
data which pertain to the physical conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or 
contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work 
and which Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and furnishing the Work in 
accordance with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
4.6. On request in advance, Owner will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such explorations 
and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid.  Bidder shall fill all holes, clean up and 
restore the site to its former condition upon completion of such explorations. 
 
4.7. The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and 
other lands designated for use by Contractor in performing the Work are identified in the Contract 
Documents.  All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary construction facilities or storage 
of materials and equipment are to be provided by Contractor.  Easements for permanent structures or 
permanent changes in existing structures are to be obtained and paid for by Owner unless otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
4.8. The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has 
complied with every requirement of this Article 4, that without exception the Bid is premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents and such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction as may be indicated in or required by the Contract 
Documents, and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 
 
5.  INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA. 
 
5.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed to the bid on 
lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or by e-mail to purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  
Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the Owner or Engineer in response to such 
questions will be issued by Addenda.  Questions received after April 5, 2022 at 4 PM may not be answered.  
Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding.  Questions or requests for clarification 
directed to any member of the City staff or Engineer may be grounds for rejection of the bid as being 
irregular. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-3 

 
5.2. Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by Owner or 
Engineer. 
 
6.  BID SECURITY. 
 
6.1. Each Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of five percent 
of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified or bank check or a Bid Bond issued by a 
surety meeting the requirements of Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions.  
 
6.2. The Bid security of the Successful Bidder will be retained by the Owner until such Bidder has delivered 
all of the following documents to the Owner: 
 6.2.1 All required certificates or proof of insurance;  
 6.2.2 The fully executed Agreement contained in the Contract Documents; and, 
 6.2.3 The fully executed Public Construction Bond (if required) along with a certified copy of the 
Public Construction Bond as recorded in the Official Records of Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
Upon receipt of all of the foregoing documents, the Bid security will be returned to the Successful Bidder. 
The required certificates or proof of insurance and the fully executed Agreement must be delivered by the 
Successful Bidder within fifteen days after the Successful Bidder’s receipt of the Agreement from the 
Owner. The Public Construction Bond and certified copy of the same must be delivered to the Owner by 
the Successful Bidder no later than fifteen (15) days after the Owner approves and executes the Agreement 
contained in the Contract Documents (as previously executed and delivered by the Successful Bidder). 
 
If the Successful Bidder fails to deliver all of the above documentation to the Owner in the timeframes 
stated above, the Owner may annul the Notice of Award and/or may immediately terminate the Agreement 
upon written notice to the Successful Bidder and the Bid security will be forfeited.  The Bid security of 
other Bidders whom Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained 
by Owner until the earlier of the seventh day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or the 120th  
day after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be returned.  Bid security 
with Bids which are not competitive will be returned within seven days after the Bid opening. 
 
7.  CONTRACT TIME. 
 
The numbers of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be substantially completed and 
also completed and ready for final payment (the Contract Time) are set forth in the Bid Form and the 
Agreement.  If Contract Times are left blank in the Bid Form, the time for Substantial Completion and final 
completion are to be set forth by Bidder in the Bid and will be included in the Agreement.  The times will 
be taken into consideration by Owner during the evaluation of Bids, and it will be necessary for the 
Successful Bidder to satisfy Owner of Bidder's ability to achieve Substantial Completion and final 
completion within the times designated in the Bid. 
 
8.  LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 
 
Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement. 
 
9.  SUBSTITUTE OR "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS. 
 
The contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment described in the Drawings or 
specified in the Specifications. A substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished 
or used by Contractor if acceptable to Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by 
Engineer until after the Effective Date of the Agreement.  The procedure for submission of any such 
application by Contractor and consideration by Engineer is set forth in Article 7 of the General Conditions 
and may be supplemented in Division 1: General Requirements. 
 
10. SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS. 
 
10.1. If the Bid Form or Specifications require (or if Owner requests after Bids are received) the identity 
of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-4 

the principal items of material and equipment) to be submitted to Owner in advance of the specified date 
prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so 
requested, shall within seven days after the Bid opening (or seven days after request by Owner) submit to 
Owner a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations proposed for those 
portions of the Work for which such identification is required.  Such list shall be accompanied by an 
experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of 
qualification for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, person or organization if requested by Owner.  
Subcontractors shall be required to meet Contractor's liability insurance requirements as established by the 
General and Supplementary Conditions or be listed as an additional insured on the apparent successful 
Bidder's policy.  If Owner or Engineer after due investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed 
Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization, either may before the Notice of Award is given 
request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in Bid price.  
If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the contract to the 
next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and 
organizations.  The declining to make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for sacrificing the 
Bid security of any Bidder.  Any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization listed and to whom 
Owner or Engineer does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be 
deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date 
of the Agreement as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
10.2. No Contractor shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or 
organization against whom Contractor has reasonable objection. 
 
11. BID FORM. 
 
 11.1. The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents; additional copies may be obtained 

from the issuing office. 
 
 11.2. All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed in ink or by typewriter. 
 
 11.3. Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a vice-

president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign) and the corporate 
seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary.  The corporate address and 
state of incorporation must be shown below the signature. 

 
 11.4. Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a general partner, 

whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership must be shown 
below the signature. 

 
 11.5. All names must be typed or printed below the signature. 
 
 11.6. The Bid shall contain an acknowledgement of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of which 

must be filled in on the Bid Form).  All Addenda are a part of the Bid documents and each Bidder will 
be bound by such Addenda, whether or not received by the Bidder.  It is the responsibility of each 
Bidder to verify that he or she has received all Addenda issued before Bids are opened. 

 
 11.7. The address and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid must be shown. 
 
12. SUBMISSION OF BIDS. 
 
Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid marked 
with the Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted) 
and name and address of the Bidder and accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents.   
Bids shall not be submitted and will not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any 
other City’s address except as notified below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock in 
Financial Services Department.  

 
 
 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-5 

All bids must be mailed or delivered by April 20, 2022 at 3 p.m. to: 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall 
Financial Services Office - Procurement 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
SUBJECT LINE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS IFB # 22- 105 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold 

Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project.  
 
 
13. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS. 
 
 13.1. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in the manner 

that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted at any time prior 
to the opening of Bids. 

 
 13.2. If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed, written notice 

with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there 
was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid 
and the Bid security will be returned.  Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding 
on the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents. 

 
14. OPENING OF BIDS. 
 
Bids will be opened publicly immediately after the bid receipt at the City Hall, 7 N Dixie Ave, Lake 
Worth Beach, FL 33460 and as indicated in the Invitation to Bid. 
 
 14.1. When Bids are opened publicly they will be read aloud, and the amounts of the base Bids and 

major alternates (if any) will be made available after the opening of Bids.  If applicable, the bid will be 
opened in accordance with sec. 255.0518, Florida Statutes. 

 
15. BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE. 
 
All bids will remain subject to acceptance for    120  days after the day of the Bid opening, but Owner 
may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to that date. 
 
16. AWARD OF CONTRACT. 
 
 16.1. Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all informalities not 

involving price, time or changes in the Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder, 
and the right to disregard all nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced or conditional Bids.  Also, 
Owner reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder if Owner believes that it would not be in the 
best interest of the Project to make and award to the Bidder, whether because the Bid is not responsive 
or the Bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent standard 
or criteria established by Owner.  Discrepancies in the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices 
will be resolved in favor of the unit prices.  Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of 
figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. 

 
 16.2. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether or not the 

Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices and other data, as may 
be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award. 

 
 16.3. Owner may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, Suppliers and other 

persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the Work as to which the identity of 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations must be submitted as provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions (or as requested by Owner after the Bids are received). Owner also may 
consider the operating costs, maintenance requirements, performance data and guarantees of major 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-6 

items of materials and equipment proposed for incorporation in the Work when such data is required 
to be submitted prior to the Notice of Award. 

 
 16.4. Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to assist in the evaluation 

of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and financial ability of Bidders, proposed 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents to Owner's satisfaction within the prescribed time. 

 
 16.5. If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest, responsive and responsible 

Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in the best interests of the 
Project.  No bid shall be accepted from, nor will any Contract be awarded to any Bidder who is in 
arrears to the Owner upon any debt or Contract or who is a defaulter as surety or otherwise upon any 
obligation to the Owner or who has failed to perform faithfully any previous Contract with the Owner 
or other party as determined by the Owner. 

 
 16.6. If the contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award 

within   120  days after the day of the Bid opening. 
 
 16.7. When Bidder is permitted to designate the Contract Time, Bid prices will be compared after 

adjusting for differences in the time designated in the Bid for Substantial Completion. 
 
 16.8. Any subsequent contract executed as a result of this IFB may be funded, in whole or in part, 

by the Federal funds.  Bidders therefore agree that any work performed pursuant to this IFB and 
resulting contract will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal 
policies, procedures, and directives. 

 
17. CONTRACT SECURITY. 
 
Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions set forth Owner's requirements 
as to performance and payment Bonds.  When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to 
Owner, it must be accompanied by the required performance and payment Bonds. 
 
18. SIGNING OF AGREEMENT. 
 
When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by the required 
number of unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with all other written Contract Documents attached.  
Within   15  days thereafter Contractor shall sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of 
the Agreement and attached documents to Owner with the required Bonds.  In the event the successful 
Bidder fails to execute the Contract and return same to the Owner within the stipulated fifteen (15) days, 
the Owner may disqualify the Bid, and said Bidder shall not be permitted to contest to the contrary and 
does waive such right upon submitting a Bid. 
 
19. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER 
 
 19.1 Bidder may be disqualified and its Bid rejected for any of the following: 
 
   a) Bidder does not meet the Competency of Bidder and Reference requirements set forth 

herein. 
   b) Reason to believe that collusion exists among or between Bidders 
   c) Unbalanced Bid; that is, Bid in which the prices bid for some items are out of all proportion 

to those Bids of others. 
  d) Bidder’s uncompleted workload, which in the judgment of the Owner, may cause 

detrimental  impact or impair the prompt completion of this Contract. 
  e) Lack of responsibility on the part of Bidder, (for example, no Bidder would be considered 

responsible who had failed to carry out any Contract in which the Owner had been directly 
or indirectly concerned), or to which Bidder failed to perform on other projects.   

  f) A determination by Owner of the Contractor’s lack of experience or lack of competency as 
may be revealed by qualification statements, financial statements, experience records, 
references, or other questionnaires. 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-7 

  g) Substantial evidence of bad character or dishonesty. 
  h) Bidder is involved in any current litigation with Owner. 
  i) Bidder has defaulted on any contract or is in arrears on any contract. 

 
20. LICENSES, PERMITS, AND CERTIFICATION 
 
 20.1 When applicable, vendor must hold a Certificate of Competency issued by the State of Florida 

or the Palm Beach County Construction Industry Licensing. 
 
 20.2 A business tax receipt obtained from the Owner shall be required of any person maintaining a 

permanent business location or branch office within the City of Lake Worth Beach.   
 
 20.3 A copy of any licenses and permits shall be submitted with the Bid and must be in the name of 

the vendor shown on the Bid submittal. 
 
 
21. PREPARATION EXPENSE 
 
 21.1 Neither the Owner nor its representatives will be liable for any expenses incurred in connection 

with the preparation, presentation or submittal of any Bid. 
 
22. NON-COLLUSION 
 
 22.1 Bidder certifies that this Bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection 

with any individual, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity submitting a Bid for the same 
materials, services, supplies, or equipment and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.  No 
premiums, rebates, or gratuities are permitted with, prior to, or after any delivery of material or 
provisions of services.  Any violation of this provision may result in Contract cancellation, return of 
materials or discontinuation of services, and the possible removal of Bidder from the vendor Bid list(s). 

 
23. CODE OF ETHICS 
 
 23.1 If any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the Code of Ethics of the Owner, Palm 

Beach County, and/or of the State of Florida with respect to this Bid, such Bidder may be disqualified 
from performing the work described in this Bid or from furnishing the goods or services for which this 
Bid is submitted and may be further disqualified from bidding on any future Bids for work or for goods 
or services for the Owner.   

 
24. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 24.1 The award is subject to any and all applicable conflict of interest provisions found in the 

policies or Code of Ordinances of the City, the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics, and found in the 
Florida Statutes.  All Bidders must complete the Conflict of Interest Form attached hereto. 

 
Further, any Bidder coming before the City Commission for an award of a contract and who has made 
an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any 
elected official of the City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must 
disclose such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, in their responsive proposal to 
this IFB. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THE CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT WILL 
CAUSE YOUR BID TO BE REJECTED.   

 
25. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAMS 
 
 25.1 Preference may be given to businesses with Drug-Free Work Place Programs.  Whenever two 

or more Bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the Owner for 
the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a Bid received from a business that completes 
the attached DFW form certifying that it is a DFW may be given preference in the award process. 

 
26. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-8 

 
 26.1 Federal, State, County and Owner laws, ordinances, rules, codes, guidelines, directives and 

regulations that in any manner affect the items covered herein apply.  Lack of knowledge by the Bidder 
shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility. 

 
27. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES  
 

27.1 By submitting a bid, each bidder acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been 
placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a 
bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit 
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract 
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months 
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.  

 
 27.2 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 
 A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 

Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 
the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the 
boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

 B.  If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Contractor certifies that it and its 
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations 
in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the 
City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor, or any of its 
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

 C. The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 
for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

 D. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the 
City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

 E. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 
certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

 F.   As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
28. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT 
 
 28.1  The Bidder certifies that all equipment and materials contained in this Bid shall meet all 

O.S.H.A. requirements.  Bidder further certifies that, if it is the successful Bidder and the equipment 
and/or materials delivered are subsequently found to be deficient in any O.S.H.A. requirements in effect 
on the date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the equipment and/or materials into compliance 
with the aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the Bidder. 

 
29. NON-APPROPRIATIONS 
 
  29.1 The obligations of the Owner to make a Bid award and sign an agreement under the terms of 

this "Invitation to Bid" are contingent upon funds lawfully appropriated for this purpose.  Should funds 
not be appropriated for this purpose, the Owner, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to reject all 
Bids. 

 
30. FLORIDA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT AND CONTRACT CONTENT OWNERSHIP 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-9 

 
 30.1 All material submitted regarding this Bid becomes the property of the Owner.  Pursuant to sec. 

119.07(1), Fla. Stat., sealed Bids received by the Owner pursuant to a competitive solicitation are 
subject to disclosure when the Owner provides notice of an intended decision or until thirty (30) after 
opening of the Bids, whichever is earlier.  If the Owner rejects all bids submitted in response to a 
competitive solicitation and the Owner concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue the 
competitive solicitation, the rejected bids remain exempt from sec. 119.07(1), Fla. Stat., until such time 
as the Owner provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued competitive solicitation 
or until the Owner withdraws the reissued competitive solicitation.  A Bid is not exempt from disclosure 
for longer than 12 months after the initial notice rejecting all Bids made by the Owner.  Bidder should 
take special note of this as it relates to any proprietary information that might be included in their offer.  
Any resulting contract may be reviewed by any person after the contract has been executed by the 
Owner.  The Owner has the right to use any or all information/material submitted in response to this 
bid and/or any resulting contract from the same.  Disqualification of a Bidder does not eliminate this 
right. 

 
30.2 Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, and, if applicable, specifically agrees 

to:  
 
   a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the 

Owner in order to perform the service.  
   b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the 

Owner would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

   c)  Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 

  d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the Owner 
 all public records in possession of the Contractor upon termination of the Contract 
 Documents and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and 
 exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically 
 must be provided to the Owner in a format that is compatible with the information 
 technology systems of the Owner. 

 
31. E-VERIFY  
 
Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

a) Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 
newly hired employees and require all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the 
work authorization status of all the Contractors’ newly hired employees; 

b) Secure an affidavit from all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving funding 
under this Agreement) stating that the CONTRACTOR does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida 
Statutes; 

c) Maintain copies of all CONTRACTOR affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and 
provide the same to the City upon request; 

d) Comply fully, and ensure all CONTRACTORs comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes;  

e) Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f) Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida 
Statues, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the 
date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs 
incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 

 
END OF SECTION 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to secs. 255.05 and 337.18, Fla. Stat.) 
 

Surety Bond No. __________  
   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 
Name:       Name: 
Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 
 
Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 
 
OWNER: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
(561) 586-1600 
 
CONTRACT: 
Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location):  
 
BOND 
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form: 
 
This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further 

described in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and 

incorporated documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part 

hereof for the purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly 

and severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 



 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the 

times and in the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by 

reference; and 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment 

s to all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for 

prosecution of the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, an d  

p ro f e s s io na l  f ee s ,  i n c l ud i n g  b u t  no t  l imi t ed  t o  a ttorneys’ fees, including appellate 

proceedings, that Owner sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the war ran ty  and  guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the 

Contract D o c u m e n t s  for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it 

remains in full force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the 

notice and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract D ocuments and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under 

this bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 



Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as 
required under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on 
its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
 
Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 2022. 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Principal 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Title 
 

(Corporate Seal) 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Surety 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Attorney-in-Fact 
       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 
__________________________________ 

       Print Name 
 
       (Corporate Seal) 
 
 



 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE 
November 2018 00630-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach  
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project 

IFB #22-105 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 00630 
NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 556, FLORIDA STATUTES 

 
 
 
The undersigned Contractor does hereby confirm to the Owner and Engineer that the Contractor has 
reviewed the provisions of Chapter 556, Florida Statutes, and has provided to “Sunshine State One-Call of 
Florida, Inc.” the information required under F.S. 556.105 before the commencement of any excavation or 
demolition required for the Work. 
 
 Executed this    day of       , 20  . 
 
 
                         
 (name of Contractor) 
 
    
 (signature) 
 
   
 (print name) 
 
   
 (title) 
 
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 
 



 
 

CONTRACTOR’S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 
November 2018         00670-1 

00670 
CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF         
 
 
   Before me, the undersigned authority, authorized to administer oaths and take acknowledgements, personally 
appeared               , who, being by me first duly sworn, on oath 
depose(s) and say(s): 
 
 (1) He/she is/They are a (Corporation, Partnership or Individual) of      (State), doing 
business as            (Company Name), hereinafter called "Contractor". 
 
 (2) Contractor heretofore entered into a Contract with           hereinafter called 
"Owner" to do Work (furnish material, labor and services) for the construction of 
         , located at       County, Florida.  
 

(3) Contractor has fully completed construction in accordance with the terms of the Contract, and all lienors have 
been paid in full, except: 

 
 
 NAME OF LIENOR                                     AMOUNT DUE AND UNPAID 
 
                                                          $ 
 
 (4) All Workmen's Compensation claims have been settled and no liability claims are pending, in connection 
with, arising out of or resulting from the Contract. 
 
 (5) Receipt by the Contractor of the final payment, under the aforementioned Contract, shall constitute a full 
release and discharge by the Contractor to the Owner of any and all claims of the Contractor against the Owner, arising 
out of, connected with, or resulting from performance of the obligations of the Contractor pursuant to the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 (6) The term "lienor" as used in this affidavit means any person having a lien or a prospective lien, under the 
Mechanics Lien Law of Florida, on the land and property of the Owner referred to in paragraph (2) of this affidavit. 
 
  (7) This affidavit is given pursuant to the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 713.06 or Section 255.05, 
whichever is applicable.  
Signed and sealed in the presence of: 
 
                            
(ENTITY) 
      By: __________________________________ 
 
[Corporate Seal]     Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
      Title: _________________________________ 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or 
�online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly 
authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:       



 
 

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
November 2018     00680-1 

00680 
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. _____________ 

 
Project:  IFB #22-105 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project                         
                        
 
Application is made for payment, as hereinafter shown, in connection with this Agreement: 
  
 Total Work to Date - see attached schedule $   
 Work performed from                                                                 _______________(date) to _____________(date) 
 Total Material Suitably Stored - see attached schedule $   
 Gross Amount Due  $   
 Less ________ % Retainage  $   
 Amount Due to Date  $   
 Less Previous Applications  $   
 Amount Due This Application  $   
     
 Original Contract Price  $   
 Net Change Orders  $   
 Current Contract Price  $   
 Value of Work Remaining to be Done  $   
     
Contractor's Certification: 
The undersigned Contractor certifies that (1) all previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work 
done under the Agreement referred to above have been applied to discharge in full all obligations of Contractor 
incurred in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment numbered 1 through _______, inclusive; 
and (2) title to all materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this 
Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests 
and encumbrances (except such as covered by Bond acceptable to Owner). 
 
Dated                             , 20                 
        Contractor and Mailing Address 
 
        By         
         (Name and Title) 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or �online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 
 
               
Payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended. 
 
        Alan Gerwig & Associates,Inc. 
 
Date:        By:         
       (Name)    (Title) 
 
      CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
Date:       By       
       (Name)    (Title) 
 



 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
November 2018 00681 

00681 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
 

PROJECT TITLE:  City of Lake Worth Beach  
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  
IFB #22-105 

                                                                                   
 
CONTRACTOR                                                                                                                                        
 
FOR PERIOD BEGINNING _________________________ENDING                                                                                                             
 
TO ACCOMPANY APPLICATION NO.                                                                                              
 

ITEM CONTRACTOR’S Schedule of Values Work Completed 

 Unit Price Quantity Amount  Quantity Amount 

 $  $  $ 
      

 NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE WITH ALL CONTRACT ITEMS 

      

SHOWN FOR ATTACHMENT TO EACH APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT. 

      

    Total 
 (Original Contract) $    

C.O. No. 1 
      

C.O. No. 1   NOTE: CHANGE ORDER(S) SHALL BE ITEMIZED AS APPLICABLE.  
      

 
 TOTAL WORK TO DATE $____________ 
 
 

MATERIALS SUITABLY STORED 
 
 

NOTE: CONTRACTOR TO ITEMIZE AND ATTACH APPROPRIATE INVOICES 
 
 TOTAL MATERIAL SUITABLY STORED $____________ 
 
 
Accompanying Documentation (Contractor to itemize): 
 

























































































































































































































































































































 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-1 

00800 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 

 
 
These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) and other provisions of the Contract Documents as 
indicated below.  All provisions which are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.  
The General Conditions may also be supplemented elsewhere in the Contract Documents.  
 
The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions which are defined in the Standard General Conditions 
of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the 
General Conditions. 
 
PART 1 - MODIFICATIONS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
SC-2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance 
 

Delete paragraph 2.01 C. of the General Conditions in its entirety and insert the following in its 
place: 

 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
 
SC-3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 
 
 Delete the paragraph 3.03 A.3 in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, 

ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof 
or unless Contractor reasonably should have known of such conflict, error, ambiguity or discrepancy. 

 
SC-4.01 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed 

 
Delete the last sentence of paragraph 4.01 A. of the General Conditions and insert the following 
in its place: 

 
In no event will the Contract Time commence to run later than the  120th  day after the day of the 
Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier, 
unless agreed otherwise by Owner and Contractor in writing. 

 
SC-5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.03 A. and 5.03 B. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert 
the following in their place: 

 
5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 
A. Reports and Drawings: Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications shall identify those 
reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the site and 
drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures 
at the site that have been utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents.  Contractor 
may rely upon the accuracy of any Technical Data contained in such reports that is specifically 
referenced in Division 1: General Requirements as Technical Data that can be relied on by Contractor.  
Except as indicated above, Contractor shall have full responsibility with respect to subsurface and 
physical conditions at the site. 

 
B. Contractor may rely on the technical data as set forth in subsection A above, but such reports and 
drawings are not Contract Documents.  Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-2 

not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:  
 

1. The completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but not 
limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident 
thereto; or 

2. Other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or 
indicated in such drawings; or 

3. Any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical data or any such 
other data, interpretations, opinions, or information. 

 
 
SC-5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.06 A., 5.06 B. and 5.06 I. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and 
insert the following in their place: 
 
A. No reports or drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site are known to 

Owner. 
B. This subsection is not needed. 
I. This subsection is not needed. 
 

 
SC-6.01 Performance, Payment and Other Bonds 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.01 A.: 
 

In accordance with section 255.05(1), Fla. Stat., as amended from time to time, before commencing the 
Work or before recommencing the Work after a default or abandonment, the Contractor shall execute 
and record in the public records of Palm Beach County a payment and performance bond with a surety 
insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and the Contractor shall be required to provide 
to the Owner a certified copy of the recorded bond.  The Owner may not make a payment to the 
Contractor until the Contractor has complied with section 255.05(1)(b), Fla. Stat.   

 
 
SC-6.02 Insurance – General Provisions 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.02 C.: 
 
Contractor shall deliver the required certificates of insurance prior to the commencement of any Work at 
the site.  All of the policies of insurance (or the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be 
purchased and maintained by Contractor shall be “claims made” and contain the name of the Project.  
 
SC-6.03 Contractor’s Insurance 
 

Delete the following language in Paragraph 6.03 G.: 
 
G. Additional insureds: The Contractor’s commercial general liability, automobile liability, umbrella 
or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list as additional insureds Owner and 
Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions; include coverage 
for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as 
applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis. 
Contractor shall obtain all necessary endorsements to support these requirements. 
 
Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.03 J.: 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-3 

 
K. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.03 of the General Conditions shall 
provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by Laws and 
Regulations: 

 
1. Worker's Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs 6.03 A.1. and 6.03 A.2. of 

the General Conditions: 
 

  State: Statutory 
 
  Applicable Federal (e.g. Longshoreman's and Harbor 

         Workers' Compensation, Maritime, Jones Act, etc.): Statutory 
    

 
  Employer’s liability: 
 
   Bodily injury, each accident $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury by disease, each employee $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury/disease aggregate $1,000,000 
 
        

2. Contractor’s Commercial General Liability under paragraphs 6.03 B. and 6.03 C. of the 
General Conditions: 

 
General Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Products and Completed Operations Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 
Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $1,000,000 

 
3. Automobile Liability under paragraph 6.03 D. of the General Conditions: 

 
Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000 

 
4. Excess or Umbrella Liability under paragraph 6.03 E. of the General Conditions: 

 
Per Occurrence $If applicable 
 
General Aggregate $If applicable 

 
 
SC-6.04 Owner’s Liability Insurance 
 

Delete paragraphs 6.04 A. and 6.04 B. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
A. This Subsection is not needed. 
B. This subsection is not needed. 

 
SC-6.05 Property Insurance 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 6.05 C.: 
 
The maximum deductible amount for any insurance required under paragraph 6.05 shall be $5,000.00. 

 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-4 

SC-6.06 Waiver of Rights 
 
Delete paragraphs 6.06 B. and 6.06 C. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
B. This Subsection is not needed. 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
SC-7.01 Supervision and Superintendence 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.01 B.:  
 

 The superintendent will be Contractor’s representative at the site and shall have authority to act on 
behalf of Contractor.  All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to 
Contractor. 
 
SC-7.07 Patent Fees and Royalties 

 
Delete paragraph 7.07 B. and insert the following in its place: 
 

 B. This subsection is not needed.  
 

SC-7.08 Permits 
 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.08 A.:  
 
Contractor shall obtain and pay for the following permits: 
 
1. City of Lake Worth Building Permit.  Include in the bid amount a 3-percent of appropriate items 

permit fee based on the bid cost.  This permit fee amount will be adjusted based on the actual fee 
charged and the difference credited, as applicable. 

2. Any other applicable permits. 
 
SC-7.18 Indemnification 

 
Delete paragraph 7.18 A. and insert the following in its place: 
 
A. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer and their respective officers 

and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful 
misconduct of the Contractor and persons employed or utilized by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Contract Documents. Compliance with any insurance requirements required 
elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall not relieve Contractor of its liability and obligation to 
hold harmless and indemnify the City as set forth in this section.  It is the specific intent of the 
parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with section 725.06, Florida Statutes.  It 
is further the specific intent and agreement of the parties that all of the Contract Documents on this 
Project are hereby amended to include the foregoing indemnification and the required “Specific 
Consideration” therefore. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall be construed or 
interpreted as consent by the City to be sued, nor shall the Contract Documents be construed as a 
waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Fla. Stat., as amended 
from time to time. 

 
SC-10.03 Project Representative 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 10.03 A.: 
 

B. On this Project, by agreement with the Owner, Engineer will not furnish a Resident Project 
Representative to represent Engineer at the Site or assist Engineer in observing the progress and 
quality of the Work.  However, if the Engineer does furnish a Resident Project Representative per 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-5 

paragraph 10.03 of the General Conditions, the duties, etc. of the representative shall be as provided 
in the Listing of the Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of the Resident Project 
Representative as included in the Project Manual.  If Owner designates another representative or 
agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer’s consultant, agent, or employee, the 
responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity shall be 
presented at the Preconstruction Conference or as otherwise set forth in the Project Manual. 

 
SC-10.04 Rejecting Defective Work 
 
 Add the following language at the end of paragraph 10.04 A.: 
 
 A. Engineer also has the authority to disapprove or reject Work which Engineer believes will not 

produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract documents or that will prejudice the 
integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the 
Contract Documents. 

 
SC-11.04 Change of Contract Price 
 
 Delete paragraphs 11.04 C.2.c. and 11.04 C.2.e. in their entirety and insert the following in their 
place: 
 

c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed 
fee is agreed upon, the maximum allowable to Contractor on account of overhead and profit of all 
Subcontractors shall be fifteen percent;  

 
e.    the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net  

decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor’s 
fee by an amount equal to ten percent of such net decrease; and 
 

SC-13.03 Unit Price Work 
 
 Delete paragraph 13.03 E. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 E. Contractor may not make a claim for additional expenses incurred as a result of a difference 

between final quantity of any item(s) of Unit Price Work and the estimated quantity of such item(s) 
in the Contract Documents, unless specifically allowed in the Bid Form.  Any adjustments 
specifically allowed shall be made in accordance with directions in the Bid Form. 

 
SC-16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 16.03 B.: 
 

C. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds that the Owner wrongfully terminated this Contract, then 
in such event, this Contract shall be deemed terminated for convenience as provided for in this 
paragraph, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or 
revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination but may be entitled 
to all items as authorized herein. 

 
SC-18.07 Controlling Law 
 

Delete paragraph 18.07 A. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
A. This Contract is to be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The venue for any and all legal 

action necessary to enforce the Contract Documents will be in Palm Beach County, Florida.   
 
  
 
PART 2 - ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-6 

1. ATTACHMENTS: 
 
The following forms included in the Project Manual shall be used by Contractor for submittals required by 
the Contract Documents (unless Owner accepts other form): 
 
 a. Construction Payment And Performance Bond (00620). 

 
b. Notice of Compliance with Chapter 556, Florida Statutes (00630). 

 
d. Contractor's Affidavit to Owner (00670). 

 
 e. Form of Application for Payment (00680). 
 

 
END OF SECTION 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-1  
   

00820 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH PROCUREMENT DIVISION REQUIREMENTS 

 
SPC-1  APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 
 

 Except with respect to firm fixed-price contracts, no contract type shall be used unless the 
Purchasing Manager has determined in writing that: 
 
 1) The proposed contractor’s accounting system will permit timely development of 

all necessary cost data in the form required by the specific contract type 
contemplated; and 

 
 2) The proposed contractor’s accounting system is adequate to allocate costs in 

accordance with generally accepted cost accounting principles. 
 
SPC-2  RIGHT TO INSPECT PLANT 
 
The City may, at reasonable times, inspect any part of the plant, place of business, or work site of 
a contractor or subcontractor which is pertinent to the performance of any contact awarded or to 
be awarded by the City. 
 
SPC-3  RIGHT TO AUDIT RECORDS 
 
 1) Audit of Cost or Pricing Data: The City may, at reasonable times and places audit 

the books, documents, papers and records of any contractor who has submitted 
cost or pricing data to the extent that such books, documents, papers and records 
are pertinent to such cost or pricing data. Any person who receives a contract, 
change order or contract modifications for which cost or pricing data is required, 
shall maintain such books, documents, papers and records that pertinent to such 
costs or pricing data for five (5) years from the data of the final payment under 
the contract. 

 
2) Contract Audit: The City shall be entitled to audit the books, documents, papers 

and records of a contractor or a subcontractor at any tier under any negotiated 
contract or subcontract other than a firm fixed-price contract to the extent that 
such books, documents, papers and records are pertinent to the performance of 
such contract or subcontract. Such books, documents, papers and records shall be 
maintained by the contractor for a period of five (5) years from the date of final 
payment under the prime contract and by the subcontractor for a period of five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the subcontract. 

 
3) Contractor Records: If a contract is being funded in whole or in part by assistance 

from a federal agency, then the contract shall include provisions: 
 

A) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to maintain for five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the contract all books, 
documents, papers and records pertinent to the contract; and 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-2  
   

 
B) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to provide to the 

City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives access to such 
books, documents, papers and records for the purposes of examining. 
Auditing and copying them. 

 
SPC-4  CONTRACTOR’S START OF WORK & CHANGE OF SCOPE 
 
 1) The Contractor shall not perform work without a Purchase Order. 
 
 2) The Contractor shall not work out of scope without a signed, issued change order 

to the purchase order, authorizing the additional work and any change to the 
period of performance (Construction Contract Time). 

 
SPC-5  APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 
 This project is subject to approval and appropriation of funds by the City of Lake Worth 

Beach City Commission.   
 
SPC-6  BUILDING PERMIT FEE  
 
 A building permit fee equal to 3-percent of the accepted bid shall be included in the 

project costs.  See Supplemental Conditions paragraph SC-7.08 for further details.   
 
SPC-7  CONE OF SILENCE 
 
 All communications shall be in accordance with the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of 

Ordinances, Section 2-112(k), Cone of Silence. 
 
SPC-8  ADDITIONAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Any applicant coming before the City of Lake Worth Beach City Commission for an 

award of a contract with the City and who has made an election campaign contribution in 
an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the 
City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must disclose 
such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, during the application or 
bidding process and before the award of the contract in accordance with the City of Lake 
Worth Beach Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article XII Code of Ethics, Section 2-
101(2).  All applicants shall complete the City’s Campaign Contribution Statement. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-1 

 
00840 

LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF THE 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
 
 
ENGINEER may furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field staff to assist 
ENGINEER in observing performance of the Work of the Contractor.  RPR may only be part time on site, 
and CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with RPR as required in the Contract Documents. 
 
Through on-site observations of the Work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment by the 
RPR and assistants, ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work; but, the furnishing of such services will not make ENGINEER responsible 
for or give ENGINEER control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
or for safety precautions or programs, or responsibility for CONTRACTOR's failure to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in ENGINEER's agreement 
with the OWNER and in the construction Contract Documents, and are further limited and described as 
follows: 
 
 
A.  GENERAL 
 
RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of ENGINEER, 
and will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR's actions.  RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the 
on-site work shall in general be with ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR keeping OWNER advised as 
necessary.  RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and 
approval of CONTRACTOR.  RPR shall generally communicate with OWNER with the knowledge of 
and under the direction of ENGINEER. 
 
 
B.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF RPR 
 

1. SCHEDULES:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and 
schedule of values prepared by CONTRACTOR and consult with ENGINEER concerning 
acceptability. 

 
2. CONFERENCES AND MEETINGS: Attend meetings with CONTRACTOR, such as precon-
struction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and 
prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

 
3. LIAISON: 

 
a.  Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with CONTRACTOR, working principally through 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract 
Documents; and assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER's liaison with CONTRACTOR when 
CONTRACTOR's operations affect OWNER's on-site operations. 

 
b.  Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information, when required for proper 
execution of the Work. 

 
4. SHOP DRAWINGS AND SAMPLES: 

 
a.  Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples. 

 
b.  Receive samples which are furnished at the site by CONTRACTOR, and notify ENGINEER 
of availability of samples for examination. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-2 

c.  Advise ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR of the commencement of any Work requiring a 
Shop Drawing or sample if the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER. 

 
5. REVIEW OF WORK, REJECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK, INSPECTIONS AND TESTS: 

 
a.  Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist ENGINEER in determining if 
the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
b.  Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or 
defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet 
the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise ENGINEER 
of Work that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

 
c.  Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance training are 
conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that CONTRACTOR maintains adequate 
records thereof; and observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the 
test procedures and startups. 

 
d.  Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over 
the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to ENGINEER. 

 
6. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  Report to ENGINEER when clari-
fications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to CONTRACTOR 
clarifications and interpretations as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
7. MODIFICATIONS:  Consider and evaluate CONTRACTOR's suggestions for modifications in 
Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER.  Transmit to 
CONTRACTOR decisions as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
8. RECORDS: 

 
a.  Maintain at the job site or ENGINEER's office files for correspondence, reports of job 
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents 
including all Work Directive Changes, Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, additional 
Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER's clarifications and 
interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and other Project related documents. 

 
b.  Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all CONTRACTORS, subcontractors and 
major suppliers of materials and equipment. 

 
9. REPORTS: 

 
a.  Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of 
CONTRACTOR's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and 
sample submittals. 

 
  b.  Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of 

important phases of the Work. 
 
  c.  Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes, obtaining backup material from 

CONTRACTOR and recommend to ENGINEER Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, and 
Field Orders. 

 
d.  Report immediately to ENGINEER and OWNER upon the occurrence of any accident 
witnessed by RPR or that was otherwise made known to RPR. 

 
10. PAYMENT REQUESTS:  Review applications for payment with CONTRACTOR for 
compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-3 

ENGINEER, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, 
Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work. 

 
11. CERTIFICATES, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION MANUALS:  During the course of the 
Work, verify that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be 
assembled and furnished by CONTRACTOR are applicable to the items actually installed and in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to ENGINEER for review 
and forwarding to OWNER prior to final payment for the Work. 

 
 12. COMPLETION: 
 
  a.  Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to CONTRACTOR 

a list of observed items requiring completion or correction. 
 
  b.  Conduct final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER and CONTRACTOR and 

prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected. 
 
  c.  Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make 

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance. 
 
 
C. LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY 
 
Resident Project Representative: 
 

1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or 
equipment, unless authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
2. Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

 
3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, subcontractors or 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent. 

 
4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are 
specifically required by the Contract Documents. 

 
5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Work. 

 
6. Shall not accept Shop Drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

 
7. Shall not authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 
8. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others 
except as specifically authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IFB #22-105 
 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park  
Improvement Project  

  
 

01000 
 

Palm Beach County Department of Housing & Economic Development  
Requirements for Federally Funded Projects Documentation   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 1 of 27 
 

 REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS 
 

PROJECT NAME:  
 
This project is funded in part, or in whole, with Federal funds and is subject to the requirements listed 
below.  The requirements contained in this document are intended to cooperate with, to supplement, 
and to modify the general conditions and other specifications for this project.  In case of 
disagreement with any other section of this bid document/ contract, the requirements contained 
herein shall govern.  Note:  This document shall be included in the bid documents and 
contracts/ subcontracts for the project. 
 
1. General Requirements: 

The following requirements are attached: 
- Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity 

(Executive Order 11246) 
- Equal Employment Opportunity Clause for Contracts Subject to Executive Order 11246 
- Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications 

(Executive Order 11246) 
- Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts 
- Public Entity Crimes - Section 287.133, Florida Statute 
- Section 109 Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
- Nondiscrimination under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, As Amended  
- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
- Section 3 Clause  
- Work on Nights, Weekends and Holidays 
- Lead-based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act 
- Compliance with Clean Air and Water Acts 
- Other Requirements:  E-Verify Employment Eligibility 

 
2. Forms to be completed and submitted by all bidders with their bids: 

The following forms are attached: 
- Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
- Anti-kickback Affidavit 
- Certification of Eligibility of General Contractor 
- Certification of Non-segregated Facilities 
- Workforce Projection 

3. Forms for the successful bidder, to be submitted after contract award: 
- Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - 

Lower Tier Participant 
- Contractor/ Subcontractor Statement and Acknowledgement 

4. Reports to be submitted to DHED by Subrecipient/ Contractor after contract award: 
- Contract Award Report (HUD Form 2516) to be submitted as follows: 

 with the first payment request, but no later than September 30 of the year during which 
the construction contract was awarded, and 

 with the final payment request 
- Section 3 Report and Letter of Efforts – to be submitted with the final payment request 

5. Davis-Bacon Act: 
Federal labor standards provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act apply to construction projects 
valued over $2,000.  The following requirements are attached:   
- Required Use of the Labor Compliance Reporting System (LCRS) 
- Display of Posters and Wage Decision 
- Federal Labor Standards Provisions - Form HUD-4010 
- Guidance to Contractor for Compliance with Labor Standards Provisions 
- The applicable wage decision(s) shown below is attached: 

 

Wage Decision(s) No.:  

eokeefe
Typewriter
FL20220130 Heavy Mod 1 02252022

eokeefe
Typewriter
City of Lake Worth Beach - Harold Grimes Memorial Park



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 2 of 27 
 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) 
 
1. The Bidder’s attention is called to the “Equal Opportunity Clause” and the “Standard Federal 

Equal Employment Specification” set forth herein. 
 
2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage 

terms for the Contractor’s aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the 
covered area, are as follows: 

 
Timetables  Goals for minority participation  Goals for female participation  
                                             for each trade                                            in each trade_____________                                    
 
    22.4%      6.9% 
 
Area covered:              Palm Beach County All trades for the life of the project 
 
These goals are applicable to all the Contractor’s construction work (whether or not it is Federal or 
federally assisted) performed in the covered area.  If the contractor performs construction work in a 
geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such 
geographical area where the work is actually performed.  With regard to this second area, the 
contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved 
construction. 
 
The Contractor’s compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall 
be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action 
obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR-60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the 
goals.  The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform 
throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith 
effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects.  The transfer of minority or 
female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole 
purpose of meeting the Contractor’s goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order 
and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4.  Compliance with the goals will be measured against the 
total work hours performed. 
 
3. The Contractor shall provide written notifications to the Director of the Office of Federal 

Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction 
subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting 
from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of 
the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar 
amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract is to 
be performed. 

 
4. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the “covered area” 

is Palm Beach County, Florida. 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 3 of 27 
 

 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 

FOR CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246 
 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
 
1. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action 
shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensating; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The contractor 
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, 
notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
2. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 

of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
3. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has 

a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers’ representative of the 
contractor’s commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

 
4. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 
5. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

 
6. In the event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 

contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended I whole or in pat and the contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts I accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

 
7. The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract 

or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or order of the Secretary of Labor 
pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1985, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such 
action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary 
of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: 
Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened 
with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States.  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 4 of 27 
 

 
STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS  
(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) 

 
1. As used in these specifications: 

 
a. “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which 

 this contract resulted; 
 
b. “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United 

States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority; 
 
c. “Employer identification number” means the Federal Social Security number used on 

the Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U. S. Treasury Department Form 941. 
 
d. “Minority includes: 

 
(i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not 

of Hispanic origins); 
 

(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 
American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race); 
 

(iii) Asian and Pacific Island (all persons having origins in any or the original 
people of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific 
Islands); and 
 

(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the 
original people of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations 
through membership and participation or community identification). 

 
2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work 

involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of 
$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable 
goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which 
this contract resulted. 

 
3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved 

by the U. S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an 
association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and 
timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions 
participating in the Plan.  Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and 
compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each Contractor or 
Subcontractor participating in the approved Plan is individually required to comply with its 
obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under 
the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.  The overall good faith performance by 
other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any 
covered Contractor’s failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and 
timetables. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 5 of 27 
 

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in 
paragraphs 7 a through p of these specifications.  The goals set forth in the solicitation from 
which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment 
and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to 
achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area.  Covered 
Construction contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do 
not have a Federally or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and 
female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed.  Goals 
are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice form, and such notices may 
be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract and Compliance Programs office or from 
Federal procurement contracting officers.  The Contractor is expected to make substantially 
uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified. 

 
5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with 

whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or 
women shall excuse the Contractor’s obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 
11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.  

 
6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in 

meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during 
the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the 
apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of 
employment opportunities.  Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved 
by the U. S. Department of Labor. 

 
7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment 

opportunity.  The evaluation of the Contractor’s compliance with these specifications shall be 
based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions.  The Contractor shall 
document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensive as the following: 

 
a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and 

coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor’s employees are 
assigned to work.  The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to 
each construction project.  The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, 
superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out 
the Contractor’s obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific 
attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities. 

 
b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources 

provide written notification to minority and female organizations when the Contractor 
or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the 
organizations’ responses. 

 
c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each 

minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a 
union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken 
with respect to each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring 
hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, 
not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason 
therefore, along with what-ever additional actions the Contractor may have taken. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 6 of 27 
 

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with 
which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the 
Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor 
has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor’s 
efforts to meet its obligations. 

 
e. Develop on-the-site-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs 

for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading 
programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor’s 
employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the 
Department of Labor.  The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the 
sources complied under 7a above. 

 
f. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions 

and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting  the Contractor in 
meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective 
bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper; annual report, 
etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all 
minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company 
EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where 
construction work is performed. 

 
g. Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and affirmative action 

obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for 
hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including 
specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as 
Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at 
any job site.  A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and 
place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition 
of the subject matter. 

 
h. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising 

in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and 
providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor’s EEO policy with other 
Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing 
business. 

 
i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community 

organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and 
female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor’s recruitment 
area and employment needs.  Not later than one month prior to the date for the 
acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment 
source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the 
above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the 
selection process. 

 
j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons 

and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation 
employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a 
Contractor’s work force. 

 
k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do 

so under 41 CFR Part 60-3. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 7 of 27 
 

l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and 
female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to 
seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities. 

 
m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other 

personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all 
personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the 
Contractor’s obligations under these specifications are being carried out. 

 
n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that 

separate or single-user toilet, and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to 
assure privacy between the sexes. 

 
o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontractors from 

minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of 
solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business 
associations. 

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, f all supervisors’ adherence to and performance 
under the Contractor’s EEO policies and affirmative action obligations. 

 
8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling 

one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through p).  The efforts of a contractor 
association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the 
contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its 
obligations under 7a through p or these specifications provided that the contractor actively 
participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact 
on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete 
benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor’s minority and female workforce 
participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can 
provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on 
behalf of the Contractor.  The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor’s and failure 
of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor’s 
noncompliance. 

 
9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established.  

The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take 
affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority 
and non-minority. 
Consequently, the Contractor may be in violating of the Executive Order if a particular group 
is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor 
has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the 
Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized). 

 
10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to 

discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 
 
11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from 

Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 8 of 27 
 

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these 
specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and 
cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive 
Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs.  Any Contractor  who fails to carry out such sanctions and 
penalties shall be in violating of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as 
amended. 

 
13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific 

affirmative action steps, at last as extensive as those standards prescribed I paragraph 7 of 
these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal 
employment opportunity.  If the Contractor fails to company with the requirements of the 
Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall 
proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8. 

 
14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related 

activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out; to submit reports relating 
to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records.  
Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, 
construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, 
social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or 
laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of 
pay, and locations at which the work was performed.  Records shall be maintained in an 
easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records 
satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records. 

 
15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws 

which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for 
the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g. those under the Public Works Employment Act 
of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 9 of 27 
 

 
BONDING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
 

The requirements of 2 CFR Part 200 are applicable to this project as it relates to bid guarantees, 
performance bonds, and payment bonds for construction contracts exceeding the Simplified 
Acquisition Threshold as defined in 2 CFR 200.88. As of the publication of this part, the Simplified 
Acquisition Threshold is $250,000.  

2 CFR 200.325, Bonding Requirements, established minimum requirements as follows: 

 
1. BID GUARANTEE 
 

A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent (5%) of the bid price.  
 
Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, certified check, cashiers check or other 
negotiable instrument in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total bid.  Said check or bond 
shall be made payable to the entity soliciting the bid as the owner of the project, and shall be 
given as a guarantee that the bidder, upon receipt of the notice of intent to award the contract, 
will enter into an agreement with the owner, and will furnish the necessary documents 
including, but not limited to: insurance certificates, Payment Bond and Performance Bond; 
each of the said bonds to be in the amount stated herein.  In case of refusal or failure to enter 
into said agreement, the check or bid bond, as the case may be, shall be forfeited to the 
owner.  All bonds shall be written by a surety company of recognized standing, authorized to 
conduct business in the State of Florida, and shall have a registered agent in the State of 
Florida. 

 
2. PERFORMANCE BOND 

A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent (100%) of the contract price. A 
“performance bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the 
contractor's obligations under such contract.  

3. PAYMENT BOND 
A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent (100%) of the contract price. A 
“payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required by 
law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the 
contract.  

When the successful bidder delivers the executed agreement to the owner, it must be 
accompanied by a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in the amount of one 
hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, executed by a corporate surety company of 
recognized standing, authorized to do business in the State of Florida.  The bidder shall state 
in the bid proposal the name, address, telephone number and full name of the authorized 
agent of the surety or sureties who will sign these bonds in the event the contract is awarded 
to the bidder.  During the bidding and construction periods the surety company shall hold a 
current certificate of authority as an acceptable surety on Federal Bonds, in accordance with 
U. S. Department of Treasury Circular 570, Current Revision. 

 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 10 of 27 
 

 
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

 
As provided in F.S. 287.133 by entering into this contract or performing any work in furtherance 
hereof, the contractor certifies that it, its affiliates, suppliers, subcontractors and consultants who will 
perform hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of 
Florida Department of Management Services within the 36 months immediately preceding the date 
hereof.  This notice is required by F.S. 287.133 (3)(a)." 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

SECTION 109 HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1974 
 
The Nondiscrimination Clause of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 applies to 
all sections of Title 1 of the Act. 
 

“No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin or sex be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds available under this title.” 

 
The contractor certifies that the above Section 109 statement forms part of the contract and is in 
compliance with Section 570.601 of the Community Development Block Grant Regulations. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

NONDISCRIMINATION UNDER THE AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975, AS AMENDED 
 
To the extent required by law, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (P.L. 94-135), as amended, which provides that no person in the United 
States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
 
To the extent applicable to this agreement, the contractor will comply with, and agrees to include 
this provision in every subcontract: 
 
 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352), and the regulations issued pursuant 
thereto (24 CFR Part 1), which provides that no person in the United States shall on the grounds of 
race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the applicant receives 
Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate This 
assurance/ If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of Federal 
financial assistance extended to the applicant, this assurance shall obligate the applicant, or in the 
case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period during which the real property 
or structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or for 
another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 11 of 27 
 

 
SECTION 3 CLAUSE 

 
1. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of 

the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U. S.C. 170 lu (Section 
3).  The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3 shall, to the 
greatest extent feasible, be directed to low-and very low-income persons, particularly 
persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 

 
2. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD’s requirements in 24 CFR Part 75, 

which implement Section 3.  As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to 
this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent 
them from complying with the Part 75 regulations. 
 

3. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 
notice advising the labor organization or workers representative of the contractor’s 
commitment under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice.  The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set 
forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training 
positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 
 

4. The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 75, and agrees to take appropriate action, as 
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause, upon a 
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 75.  The 
contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or 
knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 
Part 75. 
 

5. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, 
that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) 
with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part 75 require employment 
opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor’s obligations under 
24 CFR Part 75. 
  

6. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
WORK ON NIGHTS, WEEKENDS, AND HOLIDAYS 

 
Neither the prime contractor nor any subcontractor shall be allowed to perform one hundred percent 
(100%) of their work on this project on nights, weekends, or Palm Beach County recognized holidays.  
The prime contractor and all subcontractors shall, at a minimum, perform work on this project for the 
duration of one regular working day.  The prime contractor may request a waiver to the above 
requirement should the nature of the project so necessitate. 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 12 of 27 
 

 
LEAD-BASED PAINT POISONING PREVENTION ACT 

 
References: - 24 CFR Part 570 

- 24 CFR Part 35 
  - Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, as amended 
  - Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 
  - 40 CFR Part 745 
 
The aforementioned Acts and the referenced regulations prohibit the use of lead-based paint in 
housing receiving Federal assistance, and in child occupied facilities. 
In addition, these regulations require elimination of lead-based paint hazards in housing constructed 
prior to 1978 which receives Federal assistance. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * *  
 

COMPLIANCE WITH CLEAN AIR AND WATER ACTS 
 
In compliance with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 1857(R) et. Seq., Section 508 pf Clean 
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended 33 U.S.C. 1368 and Executive Order 11738. 
 
1251 et. Seq., and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency with respect thereto, the 
appropriate parts of 40 CFR as amended from time to time.  Contractor agrees that: 
 

(1) No facility to be utilized in the performance of this Contract or any subcontract shall 
not be a facility listed on the EPA list of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20. 

(2) He will comply with all requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 
(42 USC 1857 c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended, (33 USC 1368 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and 
information, as well as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and 
Section 308. And all regulations and guidelines issued there under. 

(3) He will promptly notify the Owner of any notification received from the Director, Office 
of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the 
contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. 

(4) He will comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency 
which are contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 49-163). 

(5) He will include or cause to be included the provisions of paragraph (1) through (5) of 
this section in every nonexempt subcontract and that he will take such action as the 
Government may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * *  

 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 13 of 27 
 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
E-VERIFY EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY  

 
 
Pursuant to section 448.095, Florida Statutes, Beginning January 1, 2021, every public employer, 
contractor, and subcontractor shall register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees. A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor 
may not enter into a contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify 
system. 
 
Contractor must provide evidence of compliance with section 448.095, Florida Statutes.  Evidence 
shall consist of a copy of their proof of registration in the E-Verify system. 
 
If a contractor enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the 
contractor with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an unauthorized alien, as defined in section 448.095, Florida Statutes.   
 
The contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the contract. 
 
A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a person or entity 
with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1) shall terminate the contract with the 
person or entity. 
 
A public employer that has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated this subsection, 
but the contractor otherwise complied with this subsection, shall promptly notify the contractor and 
order the contractor to immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor. 
 
A contract terminated under subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. is not a breach of contract and may 
not be considered as such. 
 
 
  

https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2020/448.09












PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 19 of 27 
 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 

SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY  
EXCLUSION-LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT 

 
(SUBCONTRACTORS) 

 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower-Tier 
Covered Transactions pursuant to 24 CFR, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 24.510(b) and HUD 
Handbook 1300.13 REV.1: 
 
By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower-tier participant, certifies that neither 
it, nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 
  
Further, I, we, provide the certification set out below: 
 
1. I, and any principals of my firm, understand that the certification in this clause is a material 

representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered 
into.  If it is later determined that I, we, knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the Department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies. 
 

2. Further, I, and any principal of my firm, shall provide immediate written notice to the person 
to which this proposal is submitted if at any time I, we, learn that my/our certification was 
erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 
3 By submitting this proposal, I, and any principals of my firm, agree that should the proposed 

covered transaction be entered into, I, we, will not knowingly enter into any lower-tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation.  In this covered transaction unless authorized by the agency with 
which this transaction originated. 

 
4. I, and any principals of my firm, further agree by submitting this proposal that I/we, will include 

this Certification, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower-tier covered transacting. 

 
Project Name:       __________ ____________________________________________________                                                                                                                         
 
Subcontractor Name:  ______________________________________________________ _____                                                                      
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________                                                             
 
State of FL Contractor License or Palm Beach County Contractors Certificate of Competency 
 
License/ Certification No:                                                          Expiration Date:    ________       ____        
 
By: 
                                                                                                                           
________________________ ________________________ _____________ 
Name and Title Signature Date 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 20 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY                   DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms              Page 21 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PH
IH
CPD
Housing

Grant/Project Number or HUD 
Case Number or other 

identification of property, 
subdivision, dwelling unit, etc.             

7a.

Amount of 
Contract or 
Subcontact                   

7b.

Type of Trade 
Code             

(See below)     
7c.

Contractor or 
Subcontractor 

Business 
Racial/Ethnic 
(See below)      

7d.

Woman Owned Business 
(Yes or No)                                

7e.

Prime Contractor Identification (ID) 
Number                                                       

7f.
Sec.  3    

7g.

Subcontractor 
Identification (ID) 

Number                     
7h

Sec. 3                
7i.

State Zip

CPD:
1 = New Construction 6 = Professional

2 = Education/Training 7 = Tenant Services
3 = Other 8 = Education/Training

0 = Other

7d:  Racial/Ethnic Codes:

1 = White Americans

3 = Native Americans
4 = Hispanic Americans

5: Program Codes (Complete for Housing and Public and Indian Housing programs only):

2= Flexible Subsidy
1 = All Insured, including Section8 5 = Section 202

6 = HUD-Held (Management)

Housing/Public Housing:

7c: Type of Trade Codes:

2 = Black Americans1 = New Construction

9 = Arch./Engrg. Appraisal 5 = Asian/Pacific Americans
8 = Section 8114 = Insured (Management)

3 = Section 8 Noninsured, Non-HFDA 7 = Public/India Housing

OMB Approval No.: 2577-0088                                               
OMB Approval No.: 2502-0355 

Executive Orders dated July 14, 1983, directs the Minority Business Development Plans shall be developed by each Federal Agency and the these annual plans shall establish minority business development objectives.  The information is used by HUD to monitor and evaluate MBE activities against the total program 
activity and the designated minority business enterprise (MBE) goals.  The Department requires the information to provide guidance and oversight for programs for the development of minority business enterprise concerning Minority Business Development.  If the information is not collected HUD would not be able to 
establish meaningful MBE goals nor evaluate MBE performance against these goals.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  The Information is voluntary.  
HUD may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

                                      Oct. 1 - Sept. 30 (Annual -FY)

Check if:

                                                    

Contract and Subcontract Activity

Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address                                                                                                                                    
7j.

Name Street City

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                                                                                                                                             

Privacy Act Notice = The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Housing Administration, is authorized to solicit the Information requested in this form by virtue of   Title 12, United States Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulation.  It will not be disclosed or relesed outside the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development without your consetn, except as required or permitted by Law.

Previous editions are obsolete. form HUD-2516 (8/98)

2 = Substantial Rehab.
3 = Repair

5 = Project Mangt.
4 = Service

6 = Hasidic Jews

1. Grantee/Project Owner/Developer/Sponsor/Builder/Agency

3a. Name of Contact Person 3b. Phone Number (Including Area Code) 4. Reporting Period 5. Program Code (Not applicable for CPD programs.)  
See explanation of Codes at bottom of Page Use a 
separate sheet for each program code.

6.  Date Submitted to Field Office

2.  Location (City, State Zip  Code)

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 22 of 27 
 

Section 3 - Acknowledgment and Intent to Comply 
(HUD Regulation, 24 CFR Part 75) 

Name of Subrecipient  

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 

Name of Contractor or Subcontractor  

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 
If awarded a HUD funded agreement and/or contract: 

A. Insert the required Section 3 Clause language into all contracts and subcontracts associated with 
the federal funded projects; 

B. Is under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent it from complying with the 
requirements of Section3 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 75; and 

C. Comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75; and 
D. Submit all required and/or requested Section 3 documentation to include, but not limited to, 

total labors hours performed by Section 3 and Targeted Section 3 workers, total labor hours for 
the project, certifications of Section 3 and Targeted section 3 workers, and certifications for 
Section 3 business concerns; and 

E. Will not contract/subcontract with ant contractor/subcontractor where the Recipient/Contractor 
has notice or knowledge that the contractor/subcontractor has been found in violation of any 
provision of 24 CFR Part 75; and 

F. Maintain documentation for the time period required for record retention or in the absence of 
applicable program regulations in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
We are (I am) committed to comply with the HUD Section 3 regulation and DHED Section 3 
requirements.  It is our (my) desire to ensure compliance, to the greatest extent feasible, through the 
awarding of contracts for work and services to Section 3 business concerns and to provide employment 
and training  to Section 3 workers and Targeted Section 3 workers. 

 
 
 
 

Subrecipient: 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

Signature: _______________________________ 

Title: _____________________________ 

Date: _____________________ 

Contractor/Subcontractor: 

Print Name: _______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Date: _____________________ 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 23 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 24 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 25 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PALM BEACH COUNTY                  DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms        Page 26 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms   Page 27 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 1 of 12 
 

 
REQUIRED USE OF THE LABOR COMPLIANCE  

REPORTING SYSTEM (LCRS) 
 
As part of the County’s commitment to assist the Subrecipient and its contractors/ subcontractors 
to conveniently comply with legal and contractual requirements including Davis Bacon and 
Related Acts (DBRA), the Department of Housing & Economic Sustainability has established a 
Labor Compliance Reporting System (LCRS) for this project.  The Subrecipient’s contractors/ 
subcontractors will no longer be required to submit paper copies of fringe benefits statements, 
weekly-certified payroll reports and/ or work performance reports, and shall instead use the LCRS 
for all DBRA reporting and tracking.  The LCRS is available for use 24-hours a day, 7 days a 
week, at no cost for reporting weekly certified payrolls and labor compliance related documents. 
Utilization of this system should also prove helpful in expediting the process of reviewing payrolls, 
approving progress payments to contractors and reimbursement payments to subrecipients/ 
developers.  
 
USER RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Subrecipients, and its contractors/subs shall NOT create internet links to the Service or 

Frame or mirror any content on any other server or wireless or internet-based device.  
2. Subrecipient and its contractors/subs are responsible for all activity occurring under User 

account and shall abide by all applicable local, state, national laws, treaties and 
regulations in connection with the use of the service, including those related to data 
privacy, international communications and the transmission of technical data. The LCRS 
Web Address for contractors/subs use will be provided by DHED, along with Federal 
Requirements and Wage Decision(s). 

3. Subrecipient shall require its contractor and subs to register through the Labor Compliance 
Reporting System. This language shall be contained in the subrecipient’s Bid and 
Construction documents. 

4. Subrecipient shall require All fringe benefits statements, weekly-certified payroll reports to 
be submitted through the LCRS and this language shall be contained in the Subrecipient’s 
Bid and Construction documents. 

 
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES FOR LCRS 
LCRS and its licensors make no representation, warranty, or guaranty as to the reliability, 
timeliness, quality, suitability, truth, availability, accuracy or completeness of the service or any 
content. LCRS and its licensors do not represent or warrant that:  
1. The use of the service will be secure, timely, uninterrupted or error-free or operate in 

combination with any other hardware, software, system or data. 
2. The service will meet PBC/DHED’s Requirements or expectations. 
3. Any stored data will be accurate or reliable. 
4. The quality of any products, services, information or other material purchased or obtained 

by PBC/DHED through the service will meet PBC/DHED’s requirements or expectations. 
5. Errors or defects will be corrected. 
6. The service or the servers that make the service available are free of viruses or other 

harmful components. 
All content is provided to PBC/DHED strictly on an “AS IS” basis. All conditions, representations 
and warranties, whether expressed or implied, statutory or otherwise, including, without limitation, 
any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose are hereby disclaimed 
to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law by LCRS and its licensors. 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 2 of 12 
 

 
DISPLAY OF POSTERS AND WAGE DECISION 

 
 
 
The contractor shall, for each federally funded project, supply and install a minimum (1) 4 ft x 4 ft 
display surface with clear acrylic cover sheet for all-weather protection and easy visibility on the 
job site. 
 
Said panel shall be mounted on a substantial post of steel, aluminum, or wood, with the bottom 
edge of the panel at 48" from ground level.  Exceptions to this mounting system may be approved 
by Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic Sustainability. 
 
The contractor shall supply a standard display of posters at the job site, including but not limited 
to: 

 Employee Rights Under the Davis- Bacon Act (English) 
 Employee Rights Under the Davis-Bacon Act (Spanish) 
 applicable Wage Decision(s)  
 Palm Beach County seal 

 
The above posters, wage decision and Palm Beach County seal for display will be provided by 
Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic Sustainability at the pre-construction 
conference and shall be in a prominent location for the ease of exposure to all employees. 
 
The contractor shall be responsible for all other Federal, State and/ or local poster requirements.  
 
The cost of poster mounting boards and posts are to be paid for by the contractor. 
 
Display board must be maintained in a legible condition throughout the entire project duration.  
Failure to provide the above could result in suspension of contract payments until violation(s) are 
corrected as directed by Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic 
Sustainability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 3 of 12 
 

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS            
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 
The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being 
assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions 
are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance. 
 
 
A. 1: (i) Minimum Wages.  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of 
the work will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent 
deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by 
regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full 
amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of 
payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual 
relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and 
mechanics.  Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 
under Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered 
wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, 
regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often 
than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are 
deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the 
wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except 
as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one 
classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually 
worked therein: Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent 
in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any 
additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-
Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the 
workers. 
 
             (ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination 
and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 
 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a        
classification in the wage determination; and 
 
(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 
 
(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a 
reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

 
               (b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 
classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where 
appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator 
of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U. S. Department of 
Labor, Washington, D. C. 20210.   



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 4 of 12 
 

The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will 
notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved 
by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.) 
 
      (c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the 
classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where 
appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the view of all interested 
parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination.  
The Administrator, or an authorized representative will issue a determination within 30 days of 
receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30 day 
period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget 
under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.) 
 
                  (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to 
subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in 
the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the 
classification. 
 
    (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers 
or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide 
fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 
 
    (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the 
contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program.  Provided,   
That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the 
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require 
the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the 
plan or program.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control 
Number 1215-0140.) 
 
A.2: Withholding.  HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or 
any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, 
which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as 
may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and 
helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by 
the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic including any apprentice, 
trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required 
by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant 
or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 
advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.  HUD or its designee may, after 
written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the 
contractor or subcontractor to the respective employee to whom they are due.  The Comptroller 
General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts. 
 
A.3:     (i) Payrolls and basic records.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years 
thereafter for all laborers and mechanic working at the site of the work.  Such records shall contain 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 5 of 12 
 

the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct 
classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for 
bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) 
of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual 
wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in 
providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such 
benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or 
program has been communicated In writing to the laborer of mechanics affected, and records 
which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.   
Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved  programs shall maintain written 
evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs,  the 
registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage raises prescribed in the 
applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management of Budget under OMB Control 
Number 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.) 
 
 (ii)(a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is 
performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is  a party to the contract, 
but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant , 
sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee.  The payrolls 
submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained 
under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(I) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall 
not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include and 
individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee’s social 
security number).  The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired.  
Optional form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web Site at 
https://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is 
responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and 
subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each of each 
covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a 
party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls 
to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, 
the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements.  It is not a violation of this 
subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social 
security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submissions to HUD 
or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 
1215-0149.) 

               (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance.” signed 
by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the 
persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following: 
 

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(I), and that such information is correct and 
complete; 

 
(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) 
employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages 

https://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm


PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 6 of 12 
 

earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been 
made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible 
deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3; 

 
(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage 
rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.  

 
             (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side 
of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of 
Compliance” required by paragraph A.3(ii)(b) of this section. 
 
 (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or 
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of 
Title 31 of the United States Code. 
 
 (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph  
A.3(i) of this section available for inspection, copying or transcription by authorized 
representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or 
subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee 
may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may 
be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance,  or guarantee of funds.  
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records 
available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12. 
 
A.4: Apprentices and Trainees. 
 (i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate 
for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a 
bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U. S. Department of Labor, Employment 
and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services 
or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his 
or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office 
of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
(where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.  The allowable 
ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater 
than the ratio permitted to contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program.  
Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not register or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice, 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 
performed.  Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that 
in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the 
journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall 
be observed.  Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered 
program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen 
hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  Apprentices shall be paid fringe 
benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program.  If the apprenticeship 
program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification.  If the Administrator 
determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 7 of 12 
 

shall be paid in accordance with that determination.  In the event the Office of Apprenticeship and 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the 
Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 
 
 (ii) Trainees.  Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work 
at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to 
and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal 
certification by the U. S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.  The 
ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration.  Every trainee must be paid at not less 
than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as 
a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  
Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. 
 
If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of 
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour 
Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding 
journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and 
participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be 
paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 
performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted 
under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training 
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted 
to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work perform until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

            (iii) Equal employment opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees and 
journeymen under 29CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR Part 30. 
 
A.5: Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.  The contractor shall comply with the 
requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 
 
A.6:  Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses 
contained in Subparagraphs 1 through 11 in this Paragraph A, and such other clauses as HUD 
or its designee may by appropriate instructions require and a copy of the applicable prevailing 
wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any 
lower tier subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contractor with all the contract clauses in this 
paragraph. 
 
A.7: Contracts  termination; debarment.  A breech of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 
may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 
 
A.8: Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.  All rulings and 
interpretations of the Davis-Bacon Acts contained in 29 CFR Part 1, 3, and 5 are herein 
incorporated by reference in this contract. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 8 of 12 
 

 
A.9: Disputes concerning labor standards.  Disputes arising out of the labor standards 
provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.  
Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor 
set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5,6, and 7.  Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 
 
A.10: (i) Certification of Eligibility.  By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a 
person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD 
programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24. 
 
 (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award 
of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) 
or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24. 
 
 (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 
U.S.C. 1001.  Additionally, U.S.C., Section 1010, Title 18, U.S.C.,  “Federal Housing 
Administration transactions, provides in part “Whoever, for the purpose of ... influencing in any 
way the action of such Administration...makes, utters or publishes any statement, knowing the 
same to be false...shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years or 
both.” 
 
A.11: Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.  No laborer or mechanic to 
whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall 
be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Contractor or any 
subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be 
instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating 
to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to his employer. 
 
 
B.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
The provisions of this Paragraph B are applicable where the amount of prime contract exceeds 
$100,000.  As used in this paragraph, the term “laborers” and “mechanics” include watchmen and 
guards. 
 

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontracting contracting for any part of 
the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or 
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in 
which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
forty hours in such workweek. 

 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages.  In the event of any 

violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor 
and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages.  In 
addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in case 
of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District 
or such territory), for liquidated damages.  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 9 of 12 
 

 
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set 
forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day 
on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard 
workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 
set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph. 
 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.  HUD or its designee shall 
upon its own action or upon written request of authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on 
account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such 
contractor or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other 
Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act, which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to 
be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid 
wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set truth in subparagraph (2) 
of this paragraph. 

 
(4) Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 

clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  
The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) though (4) of 
this paragraph. 

 

C.  Health and Safety 
The provisions of this Paragraph C are applicable only where the amount of the prime contract 
exceeds $100,000. 
 

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working 
conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as 
determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the 
Secretary of Labor by regulation. 

 
(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 

pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of 
sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 
91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq. 

 
(3) The Contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so 

that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor.  The Contractor shall take 
such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions 

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 10 of 12 
 

GUIDANCE TO CONTRACTOR FOR COMPLIANCE WITH LABOR STANDARDS 
PROVISIONS 
 
A. Contracts with Two Wage Decisions 
If the contract includes two wage decisions, the contractor, and each subcontractor who works on 
the site, must submit either two separate payrolls (one for each wage decision) or one payroll 
which identifies each worker twice and the hours worked under each wage decision. One single 
payroll, reflecting each worker once, may be submitted provided the Contractor uses the higher 
rate in the wage decisions for each identical job classification. However, where a job classification 
is not listed in a wage decision and is needed for that portion of the work, the classification must 
be added to the wage decision. A worker may not be paid at the rate for a classification using the 
hourly rate for that same classification in another wage decision.  After the additional classification 
is approved, the contractor may pay the higher of the two rates and submit one payroll, if desired. 
 
 
B. Complying with Minimum Hourly Amounts 
 (1) The minimum hourly amount due to a worker in each classification is the total of the 
amounts in the “Rates” and “Fringe Benefits” (if any) columns of the applicable wage decision. 
 
 (2) The contractor may satisfy this minimum hourly amount by any combination of cash 
and bona fide fringe benefits, regardless of the individual amounts reflected in the “Rates” and 
“Fringe Benefits” columns. 
 
 (3) A contractor payment for a worker which is required by law is not a fringe benefit in 
meeting the minimum hourly amount due under the applicable wage decision. For example, 
contractor payments for FICA or unemployment insurance are not a fringe benefit; however, 
contractor payments for health insurance or retirement are a fringe benefit. Generally, a fringe 
benefit is bona fide if (a) it is available to most workers and (b) involves payments to a third party. 
 
 (4) The hourly value of the fringe benefit is calculated by dividing the contractor’s annual 
cost (excluding any amount contributed by the worker) for the fringe benefit by 2080. Therefore, 
for workers with overtime, an additional payment may be required to meet the minimum hourly 
wages since generally fringe benefits have no value for any time worked over 40 hours weekly. 
(If a worker is paid more than the minimum rates required by the wage decision, this should not 
be a problem. As long as the total wages received by a worker for straight time equals the hours 
worked times the minimum hourly rate in the wage decision, the requirement of the Davis-Bacon 
and Related Acts has been satisfied.) 

C. Overtime 
For any project work over 40 hours weekly, a worker generally must be paid 150% of the actual 
hourly cash rate received, not the minimum required by the wage decision. (The Davis-Bacon and 
Related Acts only establishes minimum rates and does not address overtime; the Contract Work 
Hours Act contains the overtime requirement and uses “basic rate of pay” as the base for 
calculation, not the minimum rates established by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.) 
 
D. Deductions 
Workers who have deductions, not required by law, from their pay must authorize these 
deductions in writing. The authorization must identify the purpose of each deduction and the 
amount, which may be a specific dollar amount or a percentage. A copy of the authorization must 
be submitted with the first payroll containing the deduction. If deducted amounts increase, another 
authorization must be submitted. If deducted amounts decrease, no revision to the original 
authorization is needed. Court-ordered deductions, such as child support, may be identified by 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 11 of 12 
 

the responsible payroll person in a separate document. This document should identify the worker, 
the amount deducted and the purpose. A copy of the court order should be submitted. 
 
E. Classifications Not Included in the Wage Decision 
If a classification not in the wage decision is required, please advise the owner’s representative 
in writing and identify the job classification(s) required. In some instances, the State agency may 
allow the use of a similar classification in the wage decision. 
 
Otherwise, the contractor and affected workers must agree on a minimum rate, which cannot be 
lower than the lowest rate for any trade in the wage decision. Laborers (including any subcategory 
of the laborer classification) and truck drivers are not considered a trade for this purpose. If the 
classification involves a power equipment operator, the minimum cannot be lower than the lowest 
rate for any power equipment operator in the wage decision. The owner will provide forms to 
document agreement on the minimum rate by the affected workers and contractor. 
 
The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) must approve the proposed classification and rate. The 
contractor may pay the proposed rate until the USDOL makes a determination. Should the 
USDOL require a higher rate, the contractor must make wage restitution to the affected worker(s) 
for all hours worked under the proposed rate. 
 
F. Supervisory Personnel 
Foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend at least 80% of their time supervising 
workers are not covered by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts. Therefore, a wage decision will 
not include such supervisory classifications and their wages are not subject to any minimums 
under the Davis-Bacon and Related Act or overtime payments under the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act. However, foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend less 
than 80% of their time engaged in supervisory activities are considered workers/mechanics for 
the time spent engaged in manual labor and must be paid at least the minimum in the wage 
decision for the appropriate classification(s) based on the work performed. 
 
G. Sole Proprietorships/ Independent Contractors/ Leased Workers 
The nature of the relationship between a prime contractor and a worker does not affect the 
requirement to comply with the labor standards provisions of this contract. The applicability of the 
labor standards provisions is based on the nature of the work performed. 
 
If the work performed is primarily manual in nature, the worker is subject to the labor standards 
provisions in this contract. For example, if John Smith is the owner of ABC Plumbing and performs 
all plumbing work himself, then Mr. Smith is subject to the labor standards provisions, including 
minimum wages and overtime. His status as “owner” is irrelevant for labor standards purposes. 
 
If a worker meets the IRS standards for being an independent contractor, and is employed as 
such, this means that the worker must submit a separate payroll as a subcontractor rather than 
be included on some other payroll. The worker is still subject to the labor standards provisions in 
this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. 
 
If a contractor or subcontractor leases its workers, they are subject to the labor standards 
provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. The leasing firm must submit 
payrolls and these payrolls must reflect information required to determine compliance with the 
labor standards provisions of this contract, including a classification for each worker based on the 
nature of the work performed, number of regular hours worked, and number of overtime hours 
worked. 
 
H. Apprentices / Helpers 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 12 of 12 
 

A worker may be classified as an apprentice only if participating in a federal or state program.  
Documentation of participation must be submitted. Generally, the apprentice program specifies 
that the apprentice will be compensated at a percentage of journeyman rate. For Davis-Bacon 
Act purposes, the hourly rate cannot be lower than the percentage of the hourly rate for the 
classification in the applicable wage decision. 
 
If the worker does not participate in a federal or state apprentice program, then the worker must 
be classified according to duties performed. This procedure may require classification in the 
“trade” depending on tools used, or as a laborer if specialized tools of the trade are not used. The 
contractor may want to consult with the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor 
located in most large cities regarding the appropriate classification. 
 
Presently, no worker may be classified as a “helper”. As with apprentices not participating in a 
formal apprentice program, the worker must be classified according to duties performed and tools 
used.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























PH
IH
CPD X
Housing

Grant/Project Number or HUD 
Case Number or other 

identification of property, 
subdivision, dwelling unit, etc.             

7a.

Amount of 
Contract or 
Subcontact                   

7b.

Type of Trade 
Code             

(See below)     
7c.

Contractor or 
Subcontractor 

Business 
Racial/Ethnic 
(See below)      

7d.

Woman Owned Business 
(Yes or No)                                

7e.

Prime Contractor Identification (ID) 
Number                                                       

7f. Sec.  3    7g.

Subcontractor 
Identification (ID) 

Number                     
7h

Sec. 3                
7i.

CDBG State Zip
Lake Worth Beach

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

 

CPD:
1 = New Construction 6 = Professional
2 = Education/Training 7 = Tenant Services
3 = Other 8 = Education/Training

0 = Other

8 = Section 8113 = Repair

2 = Black Americans1 = New Construction

9 = Arch./Engrg. Appraisal 5 = Asian/Pacific Americans

7d:  Racial/Ethnic Codes:

1 = White Americans

2 = Substantial Rehab. 3 = Native Americans
4 = Hispanic Americans 4 = Insured (Management)

3 = Section 8 Noninsured, Non-HFDA
6 = HUD-Held (Management)
7 = Public/India Housing

Previous editions are obsolete. form HUD-2516 (8/98)

West Palm Beach, FL 33406

5 = Project Mangt.
4 = Service

6 = Hasidic Jews

SUBCONTRACTORS 1

SUBCONTRACTORS 2

PRIME CONTRACTOR

Contract and Subcontract Activity

Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address                                                                                                                                    7j.

Name Street City

Palm Beach County

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                                                                                                                                             

Elena O'Keefe

Check if:
100 Australian Ave, Suite 500

                                                    

Privacy Act Notice = The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Housing Administration, is authorized to solicit the Information requested in this form by virtue of   Title 12, United States Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulation.  It will not be disclosed or 
relesed outside the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development without your consetn, except as required or permitted by Law.

OMB Approval No.: 2577-0088                                               
OMB Approval No.: 2502-0355 

Executive Orders dated July 14, 1983, directs the Minority Business Development Plans shall be developed by each Federal Agency and the these annual plans shall establish minority business development objectives.  The information is used by HUD to monitor and evaluate MBE activities 
against the total program activity and the designated minority business enterprise (MBE) goals.  The Department requires the information to provide guidance and oversight for programs for the development of minority business enterprise concerning Minority Business Development.  If the 
information is not collected HUD would not be able to establish meaningful MBE goals nor evaluate MBE performance against these goals.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  The 
Information is voluntary.  HUD may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

(561) 233-3616 Oct. 1, 2021 - Sept. 30, 2022

2= Flexible Subsidy
1 = All Insured, including Section8 5 = Section 202Housing/Public Housing:

7c: Type of Trade Codes: 5: Program Codes (Complete for Housing and Public and Indian Housing programs only):

1. Grantee/Project Owner/Developer/Sponsor/Builder/Agency

3a. Name of Contact Person 3b. Phone Number (Including Area Code) 4. Reporting Period 5. Program Code (Not applicable for CPD programs.)  
See explanation of Codes at bottom of Page Use a 
separate sheet for each program code.

6.  Date Submitted to Field Office

2.  Location (City, State Zip  Code)

X



This report is to be completed by grantees, developers, sponsors, builders, agencies, and/or 
project owners for reporting contract and subcontract activities of $10,000 or more under the 
following programs: Community Development Block Grants (entitlement and small cities); 
Urban Development Action Grants; Housing Development Grants; Multifamily Insured and 
Noninsured; Public and Indian Housing Authorities; and contracts entered into by recipients of 
CDBG rehabilitation assistance.     

completed for public and Indian housing and most community development programs. Form HUD-
60002 is to be completed by all other HUD programs including State administered community 
development programs covered under Section3.  A Section 3 Contractor/subcontractor is a 
business concern that provides economic opportunities to low and very Low-income residents of 
the metropolitan area (or nonmetropolitan county), including a business concern that is 51 person 
or more owned by low-income residents;

costs or unusually high or low-income families.  Very low-income families (including single 
persons) whose incomes do not exceed 50 per centum of the median family income for the area, 
as determined by the Secretary with adjustments for smaller and larger families, except that the 
secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 50 per centum of the median for the 
area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such variations are necessary because of 
unusually high or low family incomes.

Contracts/subcontracts of less than $10,000 need be reported only if such contracts represent a 
significant portion of your total contracting activity. Include only contracts executed during 
this reporting period. 

or provides subcontracting or business development opportunities to businesses owned by low or 
low-income residents.  Low and very low-income residents; include participants in Youthbuild 
programs established under Subtitle D of Title IV of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable 
Housing Act.

Submit two (2) copies of this report to your local HUD Office within ten (10) days after the end 
of the reporting period you checked in item 4 on the front.  Complete item 7h. Only once for each 
contractor/subcontractor on each semi-annual report.

This form has been modified to capture Section 3 contract data in columns 7g and 7i.  Section 
3 requires that the employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD financial 
assistance for housing and community development programs shall, to the greatest extent 
feasible, be directed toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are 
recipients of government assistance for housing. Recipients using this form to report Section 3 
contract data must also use Part I of form HUD-60002 to report employment and training 
opportunities data. Form HUD-2516 is to be

The terms “low-income persons” and “very low-income persons” have the same meanings given 
the terms in section3(b)(2) of the United States Housing Act of 1937.  Low-income persons mean 
families (including single persons) whose incomes do not exceed 80 per centum of the median 
income for the area, as determined by the Secretary, with adjustments for smaller an larger 
families, except that the Secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 80 per 
centum of the median for the area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such variations are 
necessary because of prevailing levels of construction 

Enter the prime contractor's ID in item 7f. for all contracts and subcontracts. Include only 
contracts expected during this reporting period.  PHAs/IHAs are to report all 
contracts/subcontracts.

Community Development Programs Multifamily Housing Programs Public Housing and Indian Housing Programs

1. Grantee: Enter the name of the unit of government submitting this report. 1. Grantee/Project Owner: Enter the name of the unit of government, agency or mortgagor 
entity submitting this report.

PHAs/IHAs are to report all contracts/subcontracts. Include only contracts executed during this 
reporting period.

3. Contact Person: Enter name and phone of person responsible for maintaining and 
submitting contract/subcontract data. 3. Contact Person: Same as item 3 under CPD Programs. 1. Project Owner: Enter the name of the unit of government, agency or mortgagor entity 

submitting this report. Check box as appropriate.

7a. Grant Number: Enter the HUD Community Development Block Grant Identification 
Number (with dashes). For example: B-32-MC-25-0034. For Entitlement Programs and Small 
City multi-year comprehensive programs, enter the latest approved grant number.

4. Reporting Period: Check only one period. 3. Contact Person:  Same as item 3 under CPD Programs.

7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract: Enter the dollar amount rounded to the nearest dollar. 
If subcontractor ID number is provided in 7f, the dollar figure would be for the subcontract 
only and not for the prime contract.

5. Program Code: Enter the appropriate program code. 4. Reporting Period:  Check only one period.

7c. Type of Trade: Enter the numeric codes which best indicates the 
contractor's/subcontractor's service. If subcontractor ID number is provided in 7f., the type of 
trade code would be for the subcontractor only and not for the prime contractor. 

7a. Grant/Project Number: Enter the HUD Project Number or Housing Development Grant or 
number assigned. 5. Program Code:  Enter the appropriate program code.

The "other" category includes supply, professional services and all other activities except 
construction and education/training activities. 7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract: Same as item 7b. under CPD Programs. 7a. Grant/Project Number:  Enter the HUD Project Number or Housing Development Grant or 

number assigned.
7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code: Enter the numeric code which indicates the 
racial/ethnic/gender character of the owner(s) and controller(s) of 51% of the business. 7c. Type of Trade: Same as item 7c. under CPD Programs. 7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract:  Same as item 7b. under CPD Programs.

When 51% or more is not owned and controlled by any single racial/ethnic/gender category, 
enter the code which seems most appropriate. If the subcontractor ID number is provided, the 
code would apply to the subcontractor and not to the prime contractor.

7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code: Same as item 7d. under CPD Programs. 7c. Type of Trade:  Same as item 7c. under CPD Programs.

7e. Woman Owned Business: Enter Yes or No. 7e. Woman Owned Business: Enter Yes or No. 7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code:  Same as item 7d. under CPD Programs.

7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number: Enter the Employer (IRS) Number of the Prime 
Contractor as the unique identifier for prime recipient of HUD funds. Note that the Employer 
(IRS) Number must be provided for each contract/subcontract awarded.

7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number: Same as item 7f. under CPD Programs. 7e. Woman Owned Business:  Enter Yes or No.

7g. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7g. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number:  Same as item 7f. under CPD Programs.

7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number: Enter the Employer (IRS) Number of the 
subcontractor as the unique identifier for each subcontract awarded from HUD funds. When 
the subcontractor ID Number is provided, the respective Prime Contractor ID Number must 
also be provided.

7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number: Same as item 7h. under CPD Programs. 7g. Section 3 Contractor:  Enter Yes or No.

7i. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7i. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number:  Same as item 7h. under CPD Programs.

7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address: Enter this information for each firm 
receiving contract/subcontract activity only one time on each report for each firm. 7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address: Same as item 7j. under CPD Programs. 7i. Section 3 Contractor:  Enter Yes or No.

7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address:  Same as item 7j. under CPD Programs.



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 1 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Palm Beach County 
Department of Housing and Economic Development 

SECTION 3 HANDBOOK 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 2 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

SECTION 3 GUIDELINES 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 

Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, to ensure 
that employment and other economic opportunities generated through the use of federal funds 
(CDBG) shall, to the greatest extent feasible, and consistent with existing federal, state, and local 
laws and regulations, be directed to low-and very-low-income persons, particularly those who are 
recipients of government assistance for housing, and to business concerns which provide 
economic opportunities to low-and very-low-income persons. 
 
On November 30, 2020, HUD’s Section 3 Final Rule became effective and is codified at 24 CFR 
75. The new Section 3 regulation still aims to ensure that economic opportunities, most importantly 
employment, generated by certain HUD financial assistance shall be directed to low- and very low-
income persons, particularly those who are residents of the community in which the federal 
assistance is spent. 
 
Section 3 is activated when construction and rehabilitation projects receive at least $200,000 of 
federal Housing and Community Development financial assistance or $100,000 from the Lead 
Hazard Control and Healthy Homes Program. Section 3 requirements apply to the entire project 
regardless of other non-HUD sources of funds. Recipients or contractors are not required to hire 
Section 3 Workers or award contracts to Section 3 businesses other than what is needed to 
complete a covered project. The recipient and its contractors are required to submit Section 3 
report information. 
 
As a condition of receiving HUD housing and community development program funds, recipients, 
subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors must comply with the requirements of Section 3. 
HUD has the legal responsibility to monitor recipients for compliance and can impose penalties 
upon those that fail to meet these obligations. 
 
These guidelines have been prepared to provide information and guidance to Section 3 recipients, 
subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors on how comply with the Section 3 regulations. This 
guide should not be treated as a comprehensive recitation of the Section 3 Act and regulations (24 
CFR Part 75). It is a summary of the pertinent provisions and focuses on the requirements 
imposed on the developer, general contractor, and subcontractor receiving funds that trigger 
Section 3. Developers, general contractors, and subcontractors bear the responsibility to 
familiarize themselves with the Section 3 Act (24 CFR Part 75) and regulations prior to accepting 
Section 3 covered assistance. 
 
 
APPLICABILITY/COVERED PROJECTS 
 
According to 24 CFR Part 75, Section 3 recipients, subrecipients, contractor, and subcontractors 
are required to provide employment, training and contracting opportunities to Section 3 Workers or 
Section 3 Business Concerns. However, the Section 3 requirements are not imposed upon a 
recipient who does not engage in hiring or training, but instead awards contracts to developers 
and general contractors that hire and train in connection with Section 3 covered projects. 
According to the Section 3 regulations, these recipients may comply with Section 3 by ensuring 
that the developers, general contractors, and subcontractors receiving Section 3 Covered 
Assistance comply with the Section 3 Act. 
Financial assistance includes, but is not limited to, CDBG, CDBG-DR, CDBG-MIT, NSP, Section 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 3 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

108, RHP, HOME Investment Partnership (HOME), Housing Trust Fund (HTF), Emergency 
Solutions Grants (ESG), Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA), Section 202 
Direct Loan Program for Housing for the Elderly, Section 811Supportive Housing for Persons with 
Disabilities, Lead Abatement Grants, and other HUD Notice of Funding Opportunities (NOFO) 
grants. 
 
Covered projects apply to a housing rehabilitation, housing construction or other public 
construction project agreement, contract, and/or subcontract no matter which portion of the project 
is funded in part or in whole with HUD assisted funds. The project is the site or sites together with 
any building(s) and improvements located on the site(s) that are under common ownership, 
management, and financing. 
 
Section 3 requirements do not apply to projects assisted with housing and community 
development financial assistance that do not include housing rehabilitation, housing construction 
or other public construction (e.g., funds used for direct homebuyer assistance or tenant-based 
rental assistance). Pursuant to 24 CFR 75.3(b), Section 3 requirements also do not apply to 
materials-only contracts or contracts that do not require any labor. Professional service jobs are 
defined in 24 CFR 75.5 as “non-construction services that require an advanced degree or 
professional licensing, including, but not limited to, contracts for legal services, financial consulting, 
accounting services, environmental assessment, architectural services, and civil engineering 
services.” These jobs are excluded from the reporting requirement for Section 3 and Targeted 
Section 3 workers. 
 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Recipient: 
Recipient is any entity that receives directly from HUD public housing financial assistance or 
housing and community development assistance that funds Section 3 projects, including, but not 
limited to, any State, local government, instrumentality, PHA, or other public agency, public or 
private nonprofit organization. Recipients do NOT include any ultimate beneficiary under the HUD 
program that Section 3 applies (i.e., residents or laborers); and does NOT refer to contractors. 
 
Subrecipient: 
A non-Federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a 
Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program. A 
subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding 
agency. 
 
Section 3: 
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as 
amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 
 
Section 3 Worker: 
A section 3 worker is any worker who currently fits or when hired within the past five years fit at 
least one of the following categories, as documented: 
 

1. The worker’s income for the previous or annualized calendar year is below the income 
limit established by HUD for low- or very low-income. HUD income limits may be obtained 
from: https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il.html 

2. The worker is employed by a Section 3 business concern. 
3. The worker is a YouthBuild participant. 

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il.html


 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 4 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

 
 
 
Targeted Section 3 Worker: 
For Public Housing Financial Assistance projects, a Targeted Section 3 worker is one who is: 
 

1. A worker employed by a Section 3 Business concern; or 
2. A worker who currently fits or when hired fit at least one of the following categories, 

as documented within the past five years: 
a. A resident of public housing or Section 8-assisted housing 
b. A resident of other public housing projects or Section 8-assisted housing managed 

by the PHA that is providing the assistance; or 
c. A YouthBuild participant. 

 
For Housing and Community Development Financial assistance projects, a Targeted Section 3 
worker is one who is: 
 

1. A worker employed by a Section 3 Business concern; or 
2. A worker who currently fits or when hired fit at least one of the following categories, 

as documented within the past five years: 
a. Living within the service area or the neighborhood of the project, as defined in § 

75.5; or 
b. A YouthBuild participant. 

 
Section 3 Business Concern: 
A Section 3 Business concern is a business that meets at least one of the following criteria, 
documented within the last six-month period: 
 

1. It is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons; 
2. Over 75 percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the prior threemonth 

period are performed by Section 3 workers; or 
3. It is a business at least 51 percent owned and controlled by current public housing 

residents or residents who currently live in Section 8-assisted housing. 
 
RECIPIENT/SUBRECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Recipients are required to ensure their own compliance and the compliance of their 
contractors/subcontractors with the Section 3 regulations, as outlined at 24 CFR part 75. These 
responsibilities include but are not limited to the following: 
 
Designing and implementing procedures to comply with the requirements of Section 3: 
Recipient agencies must take an active role in ensuring Section 3 compliance. The first step is 
implementing procedures to ensure that all parties, including residents, businesses, contractors, 
and subcontractors, comply with Section 3 and maintain records verifying that compliance. 
 
Facilitating the training and employment of Section 3 workers:  
The recipient agency must act as a facilitator, connecting Section 3 workers to training and 
employment opportunities.  
 
Facilitating the award of contracts to Section 3 business concerns:  
The recipient agency must also work to link developers and contractors with capable Section 3 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 5 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

business concerns. Additionally, recipient agencies, when necessary, may direct Section 3 
business concerns to organizations that provide capacity-building training. 
 
Ensuring Contractor and Subcontractor Awareness of and Compliance with Section 3 
Benchmarks and responsibilities:  
The recipient agency is responsible for ensuring that contractors and subcontractors are aware of, 
and in compliance with, Section 3 requirements. 
 
Ensuring Compliance and Meeting Numerical Benchmarks:  
Recipient agencies shall ensure compliance with Section 3 by assessing the hiring and 
subcontracting needs of contractors; regularly monitoring contractor compliance; assisting and 
actively cooperating with the Secretary of HUD in obtaining the compliance of contractors; 
penalizing non-compliance; providing incentives for good performance; and refraining from 
entering into contracts with any contractor that previously failed to comply with the requirements of 
Section 3. 
 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Reporting of Labor Hours: 
a. For section 3 projects, recipients must report in a manner prescribed by HUD: 

i. The total number of labor hours worked; 
ii. The tatal number of labor hours worked by Section 3 workers; and 
iii. The total number of labor hours worked by Targeted Section 3 workers. 

b. Section 3 workers’ and Targeted section 3 workers’ labor hours may be counted for 
five years from when their status as a Section 3 worker or Targeted Section 3 
worker is established pursuant to 24 CFR 75.31. 

c. The labor hours reported under paragraph (a)(1) of this section must include the 
total number of labor hours worked on a Section 3 project, including labor hours 
worked by any subrecipients, contractors and subcontractors that the recipient is 
required, or elects pursuant to paragraph (a)(4) of this section, to report. 

d. Recipients reporting under this section, as well as subrecipients, contractors and 
subcontractors who report to recipients, may report labor hours by Section 3 
workers, under paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section, and labor hours by Targeted 
Section 3 workers, under paragraph (a)(1)(iii) of this section, from professional 
services without including labor hours from professional services in the total number 
of labor hours worked under paragraph (a)(1)(i) of this section. If a contract covers 
both professional services and other work and the recipient or contractor or 
subcontractor chooses not to report labor hours from professional services, the 
labor hours under the contract that are not from professional services must still be 
reported. 

e. Recipients may report their own labor hours or that of a subrecipient, contractor, or 
subcontractor based on the employer’s good faith assessment of the labor hours of 
a full-time or part-time employee informed by the employer’s existing salary or time 
and attendance based payroll systems, unless the project or activity is otherwise 
subject to requirements specifying time and attendance reporting. 
 

2. Additional reporting if Section 3 benchmarks are not met: 
 
If the recipient’s reporting under paragraph (a) of this section indicates that the recipient 
has not met the Section 3 benchmarks described in § 75.23, the recipient must report in a 
form prescribed by HUD on the qualitative nature of its activities and those its contractors 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 6 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

and subcontractors pursued. Such qualitative efforts may, for example, include but are not 
limited to the following: 
 

a. Outreach efforts to generate job applicants who are Public Housing Targeted 
Workers. 

b. Outreach efforts to generate job applicants who are Other Funding Targeted 
Workers. 

c. Direct, on-the job training (including apprenticeships). 
d. Indirect training such as arranging for, contracting for, or paying tuition for, off-site 

training. 
e. Technical training such as arranging for, contracting for, or paying tuition for, off-site 

training. 
f. Outreach efforts to identify and secure bids from Section 3 business concerns. 
g. Technical assistance to help Section 3 business concerns understand and bid on 

contracts. 
h. Division of contracts into smaller jobs to facilitate participation by Section 3 

business concerns. 
i. Provided or connected residents with assistance in seeking employment, including 

drafting resumes, preparing for interviews, finding job opportunities, connecting 
residents to job placement services. 

j. Held one or more job fairs. 
k. Provided or connected residents with supportive services that can provide direct 

services or referrals. 
l. Provided or connected residents with supportive services that provide one or more 

of the following: work readiness health screenings, interview clothing, uniforms, test 
fees, transportation. 

m. Assisted residents with finding childcare. 
n. Assisted residents to apply for/or attend community college or a four-year 

educational institution. 
o. Assisted residents to apply for or attend vocational/technical training. 
p. Assisted residents to obtain financial literacy training and/or coaching. 
q. Bonding assistance, guaranties, or other efforts to support viable bids from Section 

3 business concerns. 
r. Provided or connected residents with training on computer use or online 

technologies. 
s. Other. Specify: 

 
IDIS provides an empty text box next to “Other” to give grantees the option of entering a 
description about efforts taken that are not included in the list of qualitative efforts provided. 
Examples of qualitative efforts not included in the checklist displayed in IDIS are: 

 
a. Provided technical assistance to help Section 3 workers compete for jobs (e.g., resume 

assistance, coaching). 
b. Promoted the use of a business registry designed to create opportunities for 

disadvantaged and small business. 
c. Outreach, engagement, or referrals with the state one-stop system as defined in 

Section 121(e)(2) of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF APPLICABILITY 
Recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors shall in every bid solicitation for every 
Section 3 covered project disclose to bidders the applicability of Section 3 to any such project and 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 7 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

include the Section 3 clause shown below in its entirety in any such bid solicitation. Recipients, 
subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors may include further information on Section 3 in the 
bid solicitation documents, or indicate in such documents that Section 3 information is available at 
the Recipient’s, subrecipient’s, contractor’s, and subcontractor’s office for review by any bidder. 
 
CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
Recipients must include language applying Section 3 requirements in any recipient, subrecipient, 
contractor, and subcontractor agreement and/or contract for a Section 3 project. 
 
Recipients of Section 3 funding must require subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors to meet 
the requirements of § 75.19, regardless of whether Section 3 language is included in recipient, 
subrecipient, contractor, and/or subcontractor agreements, program regulatory agreements, or 
contracts. 
 
SECTION 3 CLAUSE IN EVERY CONTRACT 
Every agreement and/or contract awarded by Recipients subrecipients, contractors, and/or 
subcontractors for a Section 3 covered project shall include the following Section 3 clause in its 
entirety: 
 
Section 3 Clause: 
 

1. The work to be performed under this agreement/contract is subject to the requirements of 
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other 
economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by 
Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very-low income 
persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 
 

2. The parties to this agreement/contract agree to comply with HUD’s requirements in 24 CFR 
Part 75, which implement Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this 
agreement/contract, the parties to this agreement/contact certify that they are under no 
contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the Part 75 
regulations. 

 
3. The subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or 

representative of workers with which the subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor 
organization or workers representative of the subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor’s 
commitment under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice.  
 
The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job 
titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications 
for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the 
positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 
 

4. The subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every 
subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 75, and agrees to take 
appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in the 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 8 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

Section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 
24 CFR Part 75. The subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor will not subcontract with any 
subcontractor where the subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor has notice or knowledge that the 
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 75. 
 

5. The subrecipient/assisted entity/contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, 
including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the 
agreement/contract is executed and (2) with persons other than those to whom the 
regulations of 24 CFR Part 75 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not 
filled to circumvent the contractor’s obligations under 24 CFR Part 75. 

 
6. Noncompliance with HUD’S regulations in 24 CFR Part 75 may result in sanctions, 

termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts. 

 
BENCHMARKS: 

1. Recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors will be considered to have 
complied with the requirements, in the absence of evidence to the contrary if they: 
 

a. Certify that they have followed the prioritization effort in 24 CFR 75.19; and 
b. Meet or exceed the applicable Section 3 benchmarks. 
 

2. Section 3 benchmarks consist of the following two ratios: 
 

a. The number of labor hours worked by Section 3 workers divided by the total number 
of labor hours worked by all workers on a Section 3 project. 

b. The number of labor hours worked by Targeted Section 3 workers divided by the 
total number of labor hours worked by all workers on a Section 3 project. 
 

3. The benchmark for Section 3 workers is set at 25% or more of the total number of labor 
hours worked by all workers on a Section 3 project. 
 

4. The benchmark for Targeted section 3 workers is set at 5% or more of the total number of 
labor hours worked by all workers on a Section 3 project. 
 

 
In evaluating compliance, if a recipient, subrecipient, contractor, and/or subcontractor has not met 
the benchmark requirements set forth above but can provide evidence that they have made a number 
of qualitative efforts in the nature of its activities and those its contractors and subcontractors 
pursued (see Reporting Requirements (2) above) then the recipient, subrecipient, contractor, 
and/or subcontractor is considered to be in compliance with Section 3, absent evidence to the 
contrary. 
 
PREFERENCES FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES: 

1. Employment and Training 
a. To the greatest extent feasible, and consistent with existing Federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations, recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and/or 
subcontractors covered by this subpart shall ensure that employment and training 
opportunities arising in connection with Section 3 projects are provided to Section 3 
workers within the metropolitan area (or Nonmetropolitan County) in which the 
project is located. 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 9 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

b. Where feasible, priority for opportunities and training described in paragraph (1)(a) 
of this section should be given to: 

i. Section 3 workers residing within the service area or the neighborhood of 
the project, and 

ii. Participants in YouthBuild programs 
 

2. Contracting 
a. To the greatest extent feasible, and consistent with existing Federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations, recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and/or 
subcontractors covered by this subpart shall ensure contracts for work awarded in 
connection with Section 3 projects are provided to business concerns that provide 
economic opportunities to Section 3 workers residing within the metropolitan area 
(or Nonmetropolitan County) in which the project is located. 

b. Where feasible, priority for contracting opportunities described in paragraph (1)(b) 
of this section should be given to: 

i. Section 3 business concerns that provide economic opportunities to Section 
3 workers residing within the service area or the neighborhood of the 
project, and 

ii. YouthBuild programs 
 
Nothing in the above shall be construed to require the employment of a Section 3 Resident and/or 
a Section 3 Business concern who does not meet the qualifications of the position to be filled or 
work to be performed. 
 
SECTION 3 CERTIFICATION 

1. Section 3 Worker 
a. Any person seeking Section 3 preference shall complete the Section 3 Worker 

Certification. The person seeking Section 3 preference shall provide adequate 
documentation. A worker may qualify as a Section 3 worker through one of the 
following certifications: 

i. A worker’s self-certification that their income is below HUD’s income limit 
from the prior calendar year. 

ii. A worker’s self-certification of participation in a means-tested program such 
as public housing or Section 8-assisted housing. 

iii. Certification from a public housing authority (PHA), or an owner or property 
manager of project-based Section 8-assisted housing, or an administrator of 
tenant based Section 8-assisted housing that the worker is a participant in 
one of their programs. 

iv. An employer’s certification that a worker’s income from that employer is 
below HUD’s income limit when based on an employer’s calculation of what 
the worker’s wage rate would translate to if annualized on a full-time basis. 

v. An employer’s certification that the worker is employed by a Section 3 
business concern. 
 

2. Targeted Section 3 Worker 
a. Any person seeking Targeted Section 3 preference shall complete the Section 3 

Worker Certification. The person seeking Section 3 preference shall provide 
adequate documentation. A worker may qualify as a Targeted Section 3 worker by 
meeting the Section 3 worker requirements above and at least one of the following 
certifications: 

i. An employer’s confirmation that a worker’s residence is within one mile of 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 10 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

the work site or, if fewer than 5,000 people live within one mile of a work 
site, within a circle centered on the work site that is sufficient to encompass 
a population of 5,000 people according to the most recent U.S. Census, 

ii. An employer’s certification that the worker is employed by a Section 3 
business concern, or 

iii. A worker’s self-certification that the worker is a YouthBuild participant. 
3. Section 3 Business Concern 

a. Any Business seeking Section 3 preference shall complete the Section 3 Business 
Concern Certification. The business seeking Section 3 Business concern shall 
provide adequate documentation. This is a self-certification, and Section 3 Business 
concerns ultimately bear the responsibility of maintaining their Section 3 status and 
complying with all related HUD regulations. A Section 3 business concern is defined 
in 24 CFR 75.5 as a business that meets at least one of the following criteria, 
documented within the last six-month period: 

i. At least 51 percent owned and controlled by low- or very low-income 
persons, 

ii. More than 75 percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the 
previous 3-month period are performed by Section 3 workers, or 

iii. At least 51 percent owned and controlled by current residents of public 
housing or Section 8-assisted housing. 

 
RECORD KEEPING 
The Department of Housing and Economic Development is available to provide technical 
assistance to recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors participating in projects 
that are triggered by Section 3 requirements (24 CFR Part 75). 
 
Recipients, subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors are required to maintain and/or provide 
documentation to demonstrate compliance with the regulations including, but not limited to, 
documentation that shows hours worked by section 3 workers, Targeted section 3 workers, and 
any qualitative efforts to comply with Section 3 and be consistent with other recordkeeping 
requirements in 2 CFR Part 200. 
 
Recipients must maintain documentation, or ensure that a subrecipient, contractor, or 
subcontractor that employs the worker maintains documentation, to ensure that workers meet the 
definition of a Section 3 worker or Targeted Section 3 worker, at the time of hire or the first 
reporting period, as follows: 

1. For a worker to qualify as a Section 3 worker, one of the following must be maintained: 
a. A worker’s self-certification that their income is below the income limit from the prior 

calendar year; 
b. A worker’s self-certification of participation in a means-tested program such as 

public housing or Section 8-assisted housing; 
c. Certification from a PHA, or the owner or property manager of project-based 

Section 8-assisted housing, or the administrator of tenant-based Section 8-assisted 
housing that the worker is a participant in one of their programs; 

d. An employer’s certification that the worker’s income from that employer is below the 
income limit when based on an employer’s calculation of what the worker’s wage 
rate would translate to if annualized on a full-time basis; or 

e. An employer’s certification that the worker is employed by a Section 3 business 
concern. 

2. For a worker to qualify as a Targeted Section 3 worker, one of the following must be 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 11 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

maintained: 
a. An employer’s confirmation that a worker’s residence is within one mile of the work 

site or, if fewer than 5,000 people live within one mile of a work site, within a circle 
centered on the work site that is sufficient to encompass a population of 5,000 
people according to the most recent U.S. Census; 

b. An employer’s certification that the worker is employed by a Section 3 business 
concern; or 

c. A worker’s self-certification that the worker is a YouthBuild participant. 
 
 
The documentation described above must be maintained for the time period required for record 
retentions in accordance with applicable program regulations or, in the absence of applicable 
program regulations, in accordance with 2 CFR part 200. 
 
A recipient, subrecipient, contractor, and subcontractor may report on Section 3 workers and 
Targeted Section 3 workers for five years from when their certification as a Section 3 worker or 
Targeted Section 3 worker is established. 
 
COMPLAINTS 
Complaints alleging failure of compliance with this part may be reported to the HUD program office 
responsible for the public housing financial assistance or the Section 3 project, or to the local HUD 
field office. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
  
Examples of Efforts to Offer Training and Employment Opportunities to Section 3 Residents: 
 

1. Entering into “first sources” hiring agreements with organizations representing Section 3 
Residents. 

2. Sponsoring a HUD certified “Step-Up” employment and training program for Section 3 
Residents. 

3. Establishing training programs, which are consistent with the requirements of the 
Department of Labor, for public and Indian housing residents and other Section 3 
Residents in the building trades. 

4. Advertising the training and employment positions by distributing flyers (which identify the 
positions to be filled, the qualifications required, and where to obtain additional 
information about the application process) to every occupied dwelling unit in the housing 
development or developments where category 1 or category 2 persons (as these terms 
are defined in 135.34) reside. 

5. Advertising the training and employment positions by posting flyers (which identify the 
position to be filled, the qualifications required, and where to obtain additional information 
about the application process) in the common areas or other prominent areas of the 
housing development or developments. For HAs, post such advertising in the housing 
development or developments where category 1 or category 2 persons reside; for all other 
subrecipients, post such advertising in the housing development or developments and 
transitional housing in the neighborhood or service area of the Section 3 covered project. 

6. Contacting resident councils, resident management corporations, or other resident 
organizations, where they exist, in the housing development or developments where 
category 1 or category 2 persons reside, and community organizations in HUD- assisted 
neighborhoods, to request the assistance of these organizations in notifying residents of 
the training and employment positions to be filled. 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 12 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

7. Sponsoring (scheduling, advertising, financing or providing in-kind services) a job 
informational meeting to be conducted by an HA or contractor representative or 
representatives at a location in the housing development or developments where category 
1 or category 2 persons reside or in the neighborhood or service area of the Section 3 
covered project. 

8. Arranging assistance in conducting job interviews and the housing development or 
developments where category 1 or category 2 persons reside and in the neighborhood or 
service area in which a Section 3 project is located. 

9. Arranging for a location in the housing development or developments where category 1 
persons reside, or the neighborhood or service area of the project, where job applications 
may be delivered to and collected by a subrecipient or contractor representative or 
representatives. 

10. Conducting job interviews at the housing development or developments where category 1 
or category 2 persons reside, or at a location within the neighborhood or service area of 
the Section 3 covered project. 

11. Contacting agencies administering HUD Youthbuild programs, and requesting their 
assistance in recruiting HUD Youthbuild program participants for the HA’s or contractor’s 
training and employment positions. 

12. Consulting with State and local agencies administering training programs funded through 
TPA or JOBS, probation and parole agencies, unemployment compensation programs, 
community organizations and other officials or organizations to assist with recruiting 
Section 3 Residents for the HA’s or contractor’s training and employment positions. 

13. Advertising the jobs to be filled though the local media, such as community television 
networks, newspapers of general circulation, and radio advertising. 

14. Employing a job coordinator, or contracting with a business concern that is licensed in the 
field of job placement (preferably one of the Section 3 Business Concerns identified in part 
135), that will undertake, on behalf of the HA, other subrecipients or contractor, the efforts 
to match eligible and qualified Section 3 Residents with the training and employment 
positions that the HA or contractor intends to fill. 

15. For an HA, employing section residents directly on either a permanent or a temporary basis 
to perform work generated by Section 3 assistance. (This type of employment is referred to 
as “force account labor” in HUD’s Indian housing regulations. See 24 CFR 905.102, and 
905.201(a)(6).) 

16. Where there are more qualified section 3 residents than there are positions to be filled, 
maintaining a file of eligible qualified Section 3 Residents for future employment positions. 

17. Undertaking job counseling, education and related programs in association with local 
educational institutions. 

18. Undertaking such continued job training efforts as may be necessary to ensure the 
continued employment of Section 3 Residents previously hired for employment 
opportunities. 

19. After selection of bidders but prior to execution of contracts, incorporating into the contract 
a negotiated provision for a specific number of public housing or other Section 3 Residents 
to be trained or employed on the Section 3 covered assistance. 

20. Coordinating plans and implementation of economic development (e.g. job training and 
preparation, business development assistance for residents) with the planning for housing 
and community development. 

 
Examples of Efforts to Award Contracts to Section 3 Business Concerns: 
 

1. Utilizing procurement procedures for Section 3 Business Concerns similar to those 
provided in 24 CFR part 905 for business concerns owned by Native Americans. 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 13 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

2. In determining the responsibility of potential contractors, consider their record of Section 3 
compliance as evidenced by past actions and their current plans for the pending contract. 

3. Contracting business assistance agencies, minority contractors associations and 
community organizations to inform them of contracting opportunities and requesting their 
assistance in identifying Section 3 business which may solicit bids or proposals for 
contracts for work in connection with Section 3 covered assistance. 

4. Advertising contracting opportunities by posting notices, which provide general 
information about the work to be contracted and where to obtain additional information in 
the common areas or other prominent areas of the housing development or developments 
owned and managed by the HA. 

5. Providing written notice to all known Section 3 Business Concerns of the contracting 
opportunities. This notice should be in sufficient time to allow the Section 3 Business 
Concerns to respond to the bid invitations or request for proposals. 

6. Following up with Section 3 Business Concerns that have expressed interest in the 
contracting opportunities by contacting them to provide additional information on the 
contracting opportunities. 

7. Coordinating pre-bid meetings at which Section 3 Business Concerns could be informed 
of upcoming contracting and subcontracting opportunities. 

8. Carrying out workshops on contracting procedures and specific contract opportunities in a 
timely manner so that Section 3 Business Concerns can take advantage of upcoming 
contracting opportunities, with such information being made available in languages other 
than English where appropriate. 

9. Advising section 3 business concerns as to where they may seek assistance in overcome 
limitations such as inability to obtain bonding, lines of credit, financing, or insurance. 

10. Arranging solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities, specifications, and 
delivery schedules in ways to facilitate the participation of Section 3 Business Concerns. 

11. Where appropriate, breaking out contract work items into economically feasible units to 
facilitate participation by Section 3 Business Concerns. 

12. Contacting agencies administering HUD Youthbuild programs, and notifying these 
agencies of the contracting opportunities. 

13. Advertising the contracting opportunities through trade association papers and 
newsletters, and through the local media, such as community television networks, 
newspapers of general circulation, and radio advertising. 

14. Developing a list of eligible Section 3 Business Concerns. 
15. Establishing or sponsoring programs designed to assist residents of public or Indian 

housing in the creation and development of resident-owned businesses. 
16. Establishing numerical goals (number of awards and dollar amount of contracts) for award 

of contracts to Section 3 Businesses Concerns. 
17. Supporting businesses which provide economic opportunities to low income persons by 

linking them to the support services available through the Small Business Administration 
(SBA), the Department of Commerce and comparable agencies at the State and local 
levels. 

18. Encouraging financial institutions, in carrying out their responsibilities under the 
Community Reinvestment Act, to provide no or low interest loans for providing working 
capital and other financial business needs. 

19. Actively supporting joint ventures with Section 3 Business Concerns. 
20. Actively supporting the development or maintenance of business incubators, which assist 

Section 3 Business Concerns. 
 
 
 



 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Page 14 of 14 
S:\2020-21 Documents Forms\Section 3\Sec3 Requirements Handbook.docx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  
 

Subrecipients shall submit the enclosed Section 3 Subrecipient Report for each contract or 
agreement funded in part or in whole through HCD. Said report shall accompany the final 
reimbursement request submitted by the subrecipient for each such contract or agreement. 
Furthermore, for each covered project, the subrecipient shall also submit a letter with the report that is 
submitted for the final reimbursement request of the last contract or agreement being funded for the 
project through HCD. The letter shall indicate what goals have been met by the subrecipient as 
required herein, and if not entirely met, the letter should demonstrate why it was not feasible to 
meet these goals, document actions taken to comply, the results of actions taken, and 
impediments, if any. 
For example, a subrecipient is being funded for a certain project by HCD. The project includes an 
agreement with a consultant for services and a construction contract with a contractor. The 
consultant’s work is completed first. The subrecipient would submit the above mentioned report for 
the consultant’s agreement with the consultant’s final reimbursement request. Then, when the 
construction contract is completed, the subrecipient would submit the report for the construction 
contract with the stated letter. 
 



 

Palm Beach County                           Department of Housing and Economic Development 
Section 3 - Acknowledgment and Intent to Comply 

(HUD Regulation, 24 CFR Part 75) 
 

Name of Subrecipient  

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 

Name of Contractor or 
Subcontractor 

 

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 
If awarded a HUD funded agreement and/or contract: 

A. Insert the required Section 3 Clause language into all contracts and subcontracts associated with the 
federal funded projects; 

B. Is under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent it from complying with the 
requirements of Section3 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 75; and 

C. Comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75; and 
D. Submit all required and/or requested Section 3 documentation to include, but not limited to, total 

labors hours performed by Section 3 and Targeted Section 3 workers, total labor hours for the 
project, certifications of Section 3 and Targeted section 3 workers, and certifications for Section 3 
business concerns; and 

E. Will not contract/subcontract with ant contractor/subcontractor where the Recipient/Contractor has 
notice or knowledge that the contractor/subcontractor has been found in violation of any provision of 
24 CFR Part 75; and 

F. Maintain documentation for the time period required for record retention or in the absence of 
applicable program regulations in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
We are (I am) committed to comply with the HUD Section 3 regulation and DHED Section 3 requirements. It 
is our (my) desire to ensure compliance, to the greatest extent feasible, through the awarding of contracts for 
work and services to Section 3 business concerns and to provide employment and training  to Section 3 
workers and Targeted Section 3 workers. 

Subrecipient: 
 
Print Name: ___________________________________________ 
 
Signature: ____________________________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________________________________ 
Date: _____________________ 

Contractor/Subcontractor: 

 
Print Name: ___________________________________________ 
 
Signature: ____________________________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________________________________ 
Date: _____________________ 

 



Palm Beach County            Department of Housing and Economic Development 

 

 

Section 3 Business Concern Application 
 
A Section 3 Business concern is defined in 24 CFR 75.5 as a business that meets at least one of the following criteria, documented 
within the last six-month period: 1. At least 51 percent owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons, 2. More than 75 
percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the previous 3-month period are performed by Section 3 workers, or 3. At 
least 51 percent owned and controlled by current residents of public housing or 
Section 8-assisted housing. 
 
 

Business Information 

Business Name 
 

Business Address, City, State, & Zip 
 

Business Phone Number 
 

Business Website 
 

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Email  

Type of Business (Check applicable box): 

 Sole Proprietorship  Partnership  Corporation  Joint Venture (JV)  Non-profit 
 
 

Business – Number of Employees: 

Full-time:  Part-time:  Total:  Section 3 Employees:    

 

Section 3 Certification Category 
Please select one of the three categories below to complete your Section 3 Business Concern verification including 
all required documentation as documented within the last six months. 

 

 Category 1 - 51% or more ownership by low- or very low income persons (required information): 

 Complete Section 3 Worker Certification for each Business Owner  

 
 Category 2 – Over 75% of Labor Hours Performed by Section 3 Workers for previous 3 month period 
(required information): 
 List of all current employees  Complete Attachment 3 – Worker Verification 

 Complete Labor Hours Verification (Excel File)  

 
 Category 3 – 51% or more ownership by Public Housing or Section 8 Residents (required information): 

 Complete Section 3 Worker Certification for each Business Owner  Submit public housing or Sec. 8 documentation 

 
Name & Title Ownership % 

 
Section 3 Owner 
 

Name  
% 

   Yes                 No 

 
Title    



Palm Beach County            Department of Housing and Economic Development 

 

Name  
% 

   Yes                 No 

Title  

Name  
% 

   Yes                 No 

Title  

Name  
% 

   Yes                 No 

Title  

Name  
% 

   Yes                 No 

Title  

 

Signature and Acknowledgement 
I, being a duly authorized representative of the applicant, do hereby attest that the statements, documents, and 
responses provided with this Section 3 Business concern certification are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge. I further understand that additional information prior to, during, and at any time after Section 3 
Certification has been submitted may be requested. 

 

Name of Applicant (Business):    
 

Print Name of Authorized Representative:    
 

Signature of Authorized Representative:    
 

Authorized Representative’s Title: Date of Signature:    
 
 

  

  

  

  



Palm Beach County       Department of Housing and Economic Development 
Section 3 Worker Certification 

A Section 3 worker is any worker who currently fits, or when hired within the past five years fit, 
at least one of the following categories, as documented: 1. The worker’s income for the previous or annualized calendar 
year is below the income limit established by HUD (see chart below); 2. The worker is employed by a Section 3 business 
concern; or 3. The worker is a YouthBuild participant. 

A Section 3 Targeted worker for Housing and Community Development Financial Assistance projects is a Section 3 
worker who: (1) is employed by a Section 3 business concern; or (2) currently fits or when hired fit at least one of the 
following categories, as documented within the past five years: (i) Living within the service area or the neighborhood of 
the project, as defined in 24 CFR § 75.5; or (ii) A YouthBuild participant. 

 
West Palm Beach and Boca Raton  MSA FY2021 - $80,200 Median Family Income  Effective Date: April 1, 2021 

Family Size 1 Person 2 Persons 3 Persons 4 Persons 5 Persons 6 Persons 7 Persons 8 Persons 

Income Very 
Low 

$30,000 $34,250 $38,550 $42,800 $46,250 $49,650 $53,100 $56,500 

Income Low $47,950 $54,800 $61,650 $68,500 $74,000 $79,500 $84,950 $90,450 
 

Individual Information 
Name   

Home Street Address  

City, State & Zip  

Phone Number  Email Address  

 

Certification – Income and Residency 
Individual Income (is based on your previous or annualized calendar year and your family size) Family Size   

Is your annual household income at or below the above listed incomes for low- and very low-income?  
 Yes  No 

I am currently a participant in a YouthBuild program or was on or after 11/30/2020. 
 Yes  No 

I am currently working for a certified Section 3 business concern.  Yes  No 

I currently live within the service area or the neighborhood of the project based on a 1-mile radius or 
within an area that encompasses a population of 5,000 people.  

 Yes  No 

 
Section 3 workers’ labor hours may count for five years from when their status as a Section 3 worker is established, 
pursuant to 24 CFR 75.31. For purposes of reporting the labor hours for Section 3 workers, an employer may choose 
whether to define the workers as Section 3 workers for a five-year period at the time of the workers’ hire, or when the 
workers are first certified as meeting the Section 3 worker definition. The five-year period for a worker cannot begin 
before November 30, 2020; therefore, Section 3 workers hired prior to November 30, 2020 may be certified for a five-
year period beginning November 30, 2020. 
 
I certify that my answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. 
 
Employed with    

(Business Name) 
 
Print Name:    
 
Signature:    

Hire Date:   __________________ 
 
 
Title:    
 
Date:    

 



HOME:  CDBG:  CDBG-CV:  

B C D E F

All Workers

Labor Hours

Section 3 

Workers

Labor Hours

% of Section 3 

Worker

 Labor Hours

Targeted

Section 3 

Workers

Labor Hours

% of Targeted

Section 3 Worker

Labor Hours

Section 3

Trainees

(If yes, enter "1")

1 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

2 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

3 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

4 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

5 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

6 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

7 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

8 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

9 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

10 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

11 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

12 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

1. Submitting Business Name: 2. Project Name: 3. Project Address / Location

4. Contact Person 5. Contact Number:

Section 3 Labor Hours Summary Report (regulation 24 CFR Part 75)

6. Contact Email Address

Business Name

8. Date Report Submitted:

11. Funding Program Name and Amount:  (HOME, CDBG, & CDBG-CV)

Columns A,B, C, E, and F are automatically filled in from their coresponding excel sheet/tab.
A

10. Total Awarded Amount:

9. Project Dates:

(Start Date   -   End Date)7. Reporting Period (Pay Week):

TOTAL



B C D E F G

All Workers

Labor Hours

Section 3 

Workers

Labor Hours

All Workers

Labor Hours

Section 3 

Workers

Labor Hours

All Workers

Labor Hours

Section 3 

Workers

Labor Hours

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

0 0 0 0 0 0

#DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Print Name Title

Signature Date

2. Business Street Address, City, State, and Zip Code

I certify that the total workforce labor hours and Section 3 workers labor hours provided are true and accurate.  I will provide supporting 

documentation (i.e. certified payrolls, etc.) if requested. 

Worker Name 18

Worker Name 24

Worker Name 25

Worker Name 20

Worker Name 21

Worker Name 22

7. Reporting Period (prior 3-months -"Month, Month, and Month") 8. Date Report Submitted

Worker Name 13

Worker Name 14

Worker Name 15

Worker Name 19

Worker Name 27

Worker Name 28

Worker Name 29

Worker Name 30

Worker Name 23

Worker Name 16

Worker Name 17

Enter the Month

Please complete the form below for your entire workforce labor hours for a 3-month period.

Worker Name 26

Enter the Month Enter the MonthMonths

Worker Name 10

Worker Name 4

Worker Name 5

Worker Name 1

Worker Name 2

Worker Name 3

Worker Name 11

Worker Name 12

Section 3 Labor Hours Verification (prior 3-month period) (24 CFR Part 75)

Section 3 Labor Hours Percentage

4. Contact Person 5. Contact Number 6. Contact Email Address

1. Submitting Business Name:

Worker Name 6

Worker Name 7

Worker Name 8

Worker Name 9

A

Worker Name

TOTAL



STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OMB Control Number:  9000-0066 
Expiration Date:  4/30/2022

PART I - STATEMENT OF PRIME CONTRACTOR
1. PRIME CONTRACT NUMBER 2. DATE SUBCONTRACT 

AWARDED
3. SUBCONTRACT NUMBER

15b. TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION  
PREVIOUS EDITION IS NOT USABLE

STANDARD FORM 1413 (REV. 4/2013)
Prescribed by GSA/FAR (48 CFR) 53.222(e)

4. PRIME CONTRACTOR 5. SUBCONTRACTOR
a. NAME a. NAME

b. STREET ADDRESS b. STREET ADDRESS

c. CITY d. STATE e. ZIP CODE c. CITY d. STATE e. ZIP CODE

6. The prime contract         does,          does not contain the clause entitled "Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act -- 
Overtime Compensation."

7. The prime contractor states that under the contract shown in Item 1, a subcontract was awarded on the date shown in Item 2 to the 
subcontractor identified in item 5 by the following firm:

a. NAME OF AWARDING FIRM

b. DESCRIPTION OF WORK BY SUBCONTRACTOR

8. PROJECT 9. LOCATION

10a. NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 11. BY (Signature) 12. DATE SIGNED

10b. TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

PART II - ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SUBCONTRACTOR
13. The subcontractor acknowledges that the following clauses of the contract shown in Item 1 are included in this subcontract:

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - Overtime Compensation  
     (If included in prime contract see Block 6)  
Payrolls and Basic Records 
Withholding of Funds 
Disputes Concerning Labor Standards 
Compliance with Construction Wage Rate Requirements 
     and Related Regulations

Construction Wage Rate Requirements  
Apprentices and Trainees  
Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements 
Subcontracts (Labor Standards)  
Contract Termination - Debarment  
Certification of Eligibility

14. NAME(S) OF ANY INTERMEDIATE SUBCONTRACTORS, IF ANY

A C

B D

15a. NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 16. BY (Signature) 17. DATE SIGNED

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement - This information collection meets the requirements of 44 U.S.C. § 3507, as amended by section 2 of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995.  You do not need to answer these questions unless we display a valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  
The OMB control number for this collection is 9000-0066.  We estimate that it will take .05 hours to read the instructions, gather the facts, and answer the 
questions.  Send only comments relating to our time estimate, including suggestions for reducing this burden, or any other aspects of this collection of 
information to:  U.S. General Services Administration, Regulatory Secretariat Division (M1V1CB), 1800 F Street, NW, Washington, DC  20405.  



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: May 19, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Golf and Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 33-2022 Tenth Operating Budget Amendment to appropriate $10,000 of fund 
balance to replenish an operating account used to make an emergency purchase of golf cart 
batteries. 

 
SUMMARY: 

The current golf cart fleet needs replacement batteries while the City waits for the new golf carts 
to arrive. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In August, 2018, the City entered into a four-year delivery and purchase agreement with E-Z- 
Go Division of Textron, Inc., and master lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for the 
lease of 70 golf carts for the Lake Worth Municipal Golf Course. Due to the COVID-19 
restrictions on Golf cart usage the current golf cart batteries could not keep up with the usage 
demand and have become faulty. With the battery shortage, the cost increase to fix the current 
fleet, and the fleet at the end of its useful life, the City investigated alternative options to replace 
its current fleet and keep up with the demand for golf carts. 

In December 2021 the Commission authorized a purchase agreement with Club Car, LLC, to 
provide 70 Electric Tempo Lithium Ion Golf Carts to the Lake Worth Beach Municipal Golf 
Course and the lease financing agreement with De Lage Landen Public Finance, LLC, to finance 
the purchase. The new fleet is not expected to arrive until late May of 2022. 

During the transition period between golf cart fleets numerous carts have become faulty and 
have required repairs to keep up with the demand for golf carts. The budget transfer will cover 
the cost for the faulty carts. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 33-2022  Tenth Operating Budget Amendment to 
appropriate $10,000 of fund balance to replenish an operating account used to make an 
emergency purchase of golf cart batteries. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution No. 33-2022 
Exhibit A 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 10,000 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

404-8030-
575.34-50 

Recreation Golf 
Course 

Contractual 
Services/Other 

N/A 645,728 258.97 10,000 0 10,258.97 

 



33-2022 1 

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-2022, TENTH BUDGET AMENDMENT OF 3 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL 4 

CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING 5 

SEPARATE AND SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND 6 

CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S 7 

NECESSARY OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND 8 

EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF 9 

THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 10 

AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 11 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) previously 14 

adopted the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Annual Operating Budget pursuant to 15 

Resolution No. 60-2021 on September 27, 2021;  16 

 WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to amend the FY 17 

2022 Annual Operating Budget as set forth in this Resolution; and 18 

 WHEREAS, adoption of the FY 2022 Annual Operating Budget 19 

amendments set forth herein serves a valid public purpose. 20 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 21 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 22 

 23 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true 24 

and correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 25 

 26 

Section 2. As hereinafter stated in this Resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall 27 

mean the period of time beginning October 1, 2021, and ending and including 28 

September 30, 2022. 29 

 30 

Section 3 The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out 31 

and attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the 32 

same hereby are, appropriated to provide the monies to be used to pay the 33 

necessary operating and other expenses of the respective funds and 34 

departments of the City for the fiscal year. 35 

 36 

Section 4. The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated 37 

by reference, listed as operating and other expenses of the respective funds and 38 

departments of the City, be, and the same hereby are, appropriated and shall be 39 

paid out of the revenues herein appropriated for the fiscal year. 40 

 41 

Section 5. The revenues and the expenses for which appropriations are 42 

hereby made, all set forth above, shall be as set out in the Amended City of Lake 43 

Worth Operating Budget for the fiscal year as attached in Exhibit “A”. 44 

 45 



Pg. 2, Reso. 33-2022 

 

Section 6. The sums set out in Exhibit “A” are hereinbefore incorporated by 46 

reference and based upon departmental estimates prepared by the City Manager 47 

and the Finance Director, shall be, and the same hereby are, fixed and adopted 48 

as the amended budget for the operation of the City and its other enterprises for 49 

the fiscal year. 50 

 51 

Section 7. Except as amended in Exhibit “A” hereto, the remainder of the FY 52 

2022 Annual Operating Budget for the fiscal year remains in full force and effect. 53 

 54 

Section 8. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 55 

 56 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _________, 57 

seconded by Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the 58 

vote was as follows: 59 

 60 

Mayor Betty Resch 61 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 62 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 63 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 64 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 65 

 66 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted 67 

on the 19th day of May 2022. 68 

 69 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 70 

 71 

 72 

By: __________________________ 73 

Betty Resch, Mayor 74 

 75 

ATTEST: 76 

 77 

 78 

__________________________ 79 

Melissa Ann Coyne, CMC, City Clerk 80 

 81 



tmpA84E.tmp

 FY 2021 

Budget 

 FY 2022 

Budget 

Adopted  

 FY 2022 

Budget 

Amendment 

 FY 2022 

Budget 

Amended 

Expenditure

Administration

Wages 193,478         263,251         -                 263,251         

Benefits 43,167           53,928           -                 53,928           

Subtotal 236,645         317,180         -                 317,180         

Operating Expenditures 1,015,857      1,096,876      10,000           1,106,876      

Total 1,252,502      1,414,056      10,000           1,424,056      



 

 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, JUNE 07, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Presentation by Carolyn Beisner, Senior Environment Analyst at Palm Beach County 
Board of County Commissioners regarding the mangrove pod project 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - May 3, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Task Order # 3 with CPZ Architects, INC for the Lake Worth Beach Complex 
Conceptual Plans Design, Cost Estimates & Construction Design and Construction 
Phase Services 

B. Ordinance No. 2022-09 – First Reading – amending the City’s Official Zoning Map by 
approving the creation of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development (The Gulfstream 
Hotel) located primarily at 1 Lake Avenue 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 


	Top
	A.	04/19 RM minutes
	DRAFT 041922 RM minutes

	B.	04/25 WS minutes
	DRAFT 042522 WS minutes

	C.	04/27 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 042722 AWS minutes

	A.	Resolution No. 32-2022 - Support For the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures on Federal Highway
	Traffic Calming Staff Report
	Resolution 32-2022

	B.	Proposed Settlement of Pending Personal Injury Litigation with Anita Murphy-Moore
	Proposed Settlement Staff Report

	C.	Proclamation declaring May as Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month
	Proclamation

	A.	Ordinance 2022-06 - First Reading - LDR - Applicant Meeting Requirement
	Public Neighborhood Meeting Requirement Staff Report
	PZHP Staff Report Ordinance 2022-06
	Ordinance 2022-06

	B.	Ordinance No. 2022-10 – Second Reading - Notice Requirements for Rental Increases and Termination of Monthly Non-Residential Tenancies Without a Specific Duration
	Non-residential Tenant Notice Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-10

	C.	Resolution 23-2022 officially changing the name of Oceanbreeze to South Oceanbreeze
	South Ocean Breeze Staff Report
	Resolution 23-2022

	A.	Agreement with Ahrens Companies for Memorial Park Pavilion Project
	Ahrens Staff Report
	IFB 22-105 Bid Tab
	Contract

	B.	Resolution No. 33-2022 – Tenth Operating Budget Amendment for FY 2022
	Replenishment of Golf Operating Account Staff Report
	Resolution No. 33-2022
	Exhibit A

	Draft Agenda - June 7, 2022
	Draft Agenda - June 7, 2022

	Bottom

